
London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

 

Audit and Pensions 
Committee 

 

Agenda 
 

Tuesday, 1 December 2020 at 6.30 pm 
 

This meeting will be held remotely 
 

You can watch the meeting live on YouTube: youtu.be/w_eF4aR4eIA  
 
 

MEMBERSHIP 
 

Administration Opposition 

Councillor Iain Cassidy (Chair) 
Councillor Jonathan Caleb-Landy 
Councillor Rowan Ree 
Councillor Alexandra Sanderson 
 

Councillor Alex Karmel 
Councillor Matt Thorley 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CONTACT OFFICER: David Abbott 

Scrutiny Manager 
Governance and Scrutiny 

 : 07776 672877 
 E-mail: david.abbott@lbhf.gov.uk 
 

www.lbhf.gov.uk/committees 
 

Date Issued: 23 November 2020 

https://youtu.be/w_eF4aR4eIA
https://www.lbhf.gov.uk/committees


London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

Audit and Pensions Committee 
Agenda 

 
 
Item  Pages 

1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

 

2.   ROLL CALL AND DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 If a Councillor has a disclosable pecuniary interest in a particular item, 
whether or not it is entered in the Authority’s register of interests, or any 
other significant interest which they consider should be declared in the 
public interest, they should declare the existence and, unless it is a 
sensitive interest as defined in the Member Code of Conduct, the nature 
of the interest at the commencement of the consideration of that item or 
as soon as it becomes apparent. 
 
At meetings where members of the public are allowed to be in 
attendance and speak, any Councillor with a disclosable pecuniary 
interest or other significant interest may also make representations, give 
evidence or answer questions about the matter.  The Councillor must 
then withdraw immediately from the meeting before the matter is 
discussed and any vote taken.  
 
Where Members of the public are not allowed to be in attendance and 
speak, then the Councillor with a disclosable pecuniary interest should 
withdraw from the meeting whilst the matter is under consideration. 
Councillors who have declared other significant interests should also 
withdraw from the meeting if they consider their continued participation 
in the matter would not be reasonable in the circumstances and may 
give rise to a perception of a conflict of interest. 
 
Councillors are not obliged to withdraw from the meeting where a 
dispensation to that effect has been obtained from the Standards 
Committee. 
 

 

3.   MINUTES  4 - 12 

 To consider any matters arising and note any outstanding actions. 
 

 

4.   TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY MID-YEAR REVIEW 2020-
21 
 

13 - 22 

5.   ANNUAL HEALTH AND SAFETY REPORT 2019-20 
 

23 - 34 

6.   HEALTH AND SAFETY MID-YEAR REPORT 2020-21 
 

35 - 42 

7.   ANTI-FRAUD MID-YEAR REPORT 2020-21 
 
 
 

43 - 54 



 

8.   RISK MANAGEMENT HIGHLIGHT REPORT 
 

55 - 74 

9.   INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 2020-21 
 

75 - 83 

10.   DATE OF NEXT MEETING   

 The next meeting is scheduled for the 15th of March 2021. 
 

 



Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

Audit and Pensions 
Committee 

Minutes 
 

Tuesday 15 September 2020 
 

 

PRESENT 
 
Committee members: Councillors Iain Cassidy (Chair), Jonathan Caleb-Landy, 
Rebecca Harvey, PJ Murphy, Alex Karmel and Matt Thorley 
 
Officers 
Kim Smith (Chief Executive) 
David Hughes (Director of Audit, Fraud, Risk and Insurance) 
Mike Sloniowski (Risk Manager) 
Emily Hill (Director of Finance) 
Rhian Davies (Director of Resources) 
Phil Triggs (Director of Treasury and Pensions) 
Andrew Hyatt (Head of Corporate Anti-Fraud) 
Mathew Dawson (Strategic Finance Manager, Treasury and Pensions) 
Bram Kainth (Chief Officer – Public Realm) 
Veronica Barella (Chief Digital Officer) 
Lisa Redfern (Strategic Director of Social Care) 
Chris Harris (Chief Accountant) 
Moira Mackie (Head of Internal Audit) 
David Abbott (Head of Governance) 
 
 
NOTE: This meeting was held remotely - youtu.be/n7djuvRGb4I  
 
 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
No apologies for absence were received. 
 
Apologies for lateness were received from Councillor Rebecca Harvey. She joined 
the meeting at 6.34pm. 
 

2. ROLL CALL AND DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
The Chair carried out a roll call to confirm attendance. Attendance is listed above. 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 
 
 

Page 4

Agenda Item 3

https://youtu.be/n7djuvRGb4I


Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

3. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
Councillor Alex Karmel asked for an update on Hammersmith Bridge and the 
possible Bailey Bridge. The Chair noted that an update would be provided at the 
Community Safety and Environment Policy and Accountability meeting on 16 
September 2020. 
 
RESOLVED 
The minutes of the meeting held on 16 December 2019 were agreed as an accurate 
record. 
 

4. EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN AND PROGRESS UPDATE  
 
Emily Hill (Director of Finance) introduced the item. She was also joined by Paul 
Dossett and Ellen Millington from the auditor Grant Thornton. 
 
Emily Hill noted that due to Covid-19 there would be a delay to the statutory 
timetable and the accounts didn’t need to be signed off until November. However, 
the Council had already been assured that there were no major issues. 
 
Ellen Millington (Grant Thornton) took the committee through the audit plan and 
Covid-19 update. She highlighted the following points: 

 There was a risk around medium term financial planning due to the 
uncertainty for whole local government sector and increases in demand for 
services. 

 Covid-19 had been added as an additional significant risk. 
 
The Chair asked what the delay in the timetable meant for future audits – would they 
return to the previous timetable? Paul Dossett (Grant Thornton) said the Redmond 
Review recommended local government move to sign off their audits at the end of 
September. He expected the Government to plan to move to the September 
deadline in 2021. Ellen Millington added that Grant Thornton were still planning to do 
the audit to the same standards as in previous years despite remote working. 
 
Councillor Alex Karmel asked for clarification on the difference between IFR 15 and 
IFR 16. Paul Dossett said it related to property leases. IFR 16 meant all material 
leases were on the Council’s balance sheet. 
 
Councillor Karmel asked if the effect of IFRF 16 was positive or negative. Paul 
Dossett said in theory it was negative because it brought extra costs onto the 
balance sheet, but they were still awaiting detailed guidance on its application. Emily 
Hill said she expected the change to be neutral due to the way capital was 
accounted for in local government and statutory smoothing mechanisms. 
 
Councillor PJ Murphy, noting the additional work placed on the Finance team due to 
Covid-19, asked if the audit was still on track. He also asked what the impact on the 
team would be if and when things went back to normal. Emily Hill said she was 
pleased with the statutory deadline extension. The Council and auditors could have 
met the earlier deadline but the extension gave officers more time to focus on Covid-
19 priorities. She was confident that the Council could meet next year’s deadline. 

Page 5

http://democracy.lbhf.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=486&MId=7022


Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 
Councillor Murphy asked if the audit fee variation for additional PPE experts etc. 
were billed at cost or a ‘cost plus’ model. Paul Dossett said they were billed at cost. 
 
Councillor Murphy asked what the £5k improvement costs were spent on. Paul 
Dossett said Grant Thornton had employed more staff to work on the audits – 
including an ‘engagement quality review partner’ to judge the audit work. Some 
additional costs had been imposed  
by the regulator and were reflected in the fee proposal. 
 
Councillor Murphy felt that Grant Thorton should bear the improvement costs. Paul 
Dossett said the additional fees reflected the extra work required by the regulator. 
 
Councillor Jonathan Caleb-Landy asked what the potential impact on fees would be 
of the three potential scenarios modelled in the report. Paul Dossett advised that if 
Council’s could maintain a stable position and a good set of accounts then that kept 
fees down. The Redmond Review recommended a different level of fees with 
additional fees only for extreme events. 
 
The Chair thanked Paul Dossett and Ellen Millington from Grant Thornton for 
attending the meeting. 
 
 

5. TREASURY MANAGEMENT OUTTURN REPORT 2019-20  
 
Phil Triggs (Director of Treasury and Pensions) presented the report, noting that total 
borrowing had increased slightly as the Council had taken advantage of low interest 
rates from the Public Works Loan Boards in March. Councillor Matt Thorley asked if 
that approach was discouraged by Government. Phil Triggs said it wasn’t frowned 
upon by Government – but they did discourage borrowing for things like external 
property investments. 
 
Councillor Thorley asked if the Council was still lending to other local authorities. Phil 
Triggs said they were. Local authorities were one of the safer categories of 
counterparties, but officers still undertook full due diligence. 
 
Councillor Thorley asked about the maturity of loans to local authorities. Phil Triggs 
said they would be no more than 12 months. 
 
Councillor Alex Karmel asked for clarification of the financial implications of 
paragraph 2.4 of the report (referring to the Council’s ‘under-borrowed’ position). Phil 
Triggs said the paragraph referred to financing previous capital expenditure. Under-
borrowed meant using internal cash reserves to finance capital expenditure on a 
temporary basis. In the current environment of very interest rates, short term 
investments have very low yields meaning there was a significant gap between 
borrowing cost and investment yield. By funding capital expenditure on a temporary 
basis from cash reserves, that interest rate gap (a revenue cost known as cost of 
carry) can be avoided. 
 

Page 6



Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

Councillor Karmel asked what the net effect was of internal borrowing on last year’s 
accounts. Phil Triggs said there was a £100m difference between the capital funding 
requirement and the total loans portfolio, which produced around £1m of interest 
savings. 
 
Councillor PJ Murphy asked what the £20m of borrowing referred to in section 2 was 
used for – and if the Council had the funds for the £11m due to be repaid next year. 
Phil Triggs said there were two tranches of £20m for the loan portfolio. It wasn’t 
earmarked for specific capital projects – it would be used to finance the bottom line 
of unfinanced capital expenditure. The general practice for repayments was, if 
conditions were right, to look to refinance loans within the Council’s general 
borrowing strategy. 
 
Councillor Murphy asked how long the Council’s cash balances would last if no 
income was received. Emily Hill said it was difficult to say. The Council only 
borrowed for capital investment and it was difficult to forecast capital because of 
delays to schemes due to Covid-19. Emily Hill said she could provide an 
approximate number outside the meeting. 

ACTION: Emily Hill 
 
Councillor Matt Thorley asked if the potential mismatch in business rates and extra 
pressure on local authorities meant we would have to reconsider the strategy as the 
position had materially changed. Phil Triggs said the Treasury team had taken action 
to reduce the length of placements from 12 months to six months in recent weeks. 
The team was mindful of the potential risks and was monitoring the situation 
carefully. 
 
RESOLVED 
That the Committee noted the Annual Treasury Management Outturn Report for 
2019/20. 
 
 

6. CORPORATE ANTI-FRAUD SERVICE PERFORMANCE REPORT - APRIL 2019 
TO MARCH 2020  
 
Andrew Hyatt (Head of Corporate Anti-Fraud) presented the report that gave an 
account of fraud-related activity undertaken by the Corporate Anti-Fraud Service 
(CAFS) from 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020. 
 
Councillor Alex Karmel asked for more information on the referral mentioned in the 
report from a department whose activities included ‘significant procurements’. 
Andrew Hyatt said the referral came from a department that purchased properties for 
temporary accommodation. There was no evidence of fraud or misappropriation, but 
a member of staff should have disclosed that a family member worked in a related 
area. 
 
Councillor Matt Thorley asked what the increase in fraud loss recoveries related to 
(section 1.5 of the report). Andrew Hyatt said proceeds of crime cases were often 
quite long and recovery of funds can take up to two years. The figures reported don’t 

Page 7



Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

necessarily relate to fraud identified in that year. He said officers would try to make 
that clearer in future reports. 
 
Councillor Alex Karmel asked if there had been any progress increasing the number 
of Proceeds of Crime Act (POCA) actions. 
 
Andrew Hyatt said it was a strategic objective moving forward and while Covid-19 
had had an impact, proceeds of crime cases were progressing. He added that the 
team was looking to work more closely with Housing to obtain more investment in 
this area. 
 
Councillor PJ Murphy asked what the impact of Covid-19 and remote working had 
been on the effectiveness of the team. Andrew Hyatt said they were fortunate to 
have the IT infrastructure and support in place already. Visiting and interviews had 
slowed but officers had restarted visits at the time of reporting. The team were now 
looking more closely at anti-fraud controls within services following changes from 
remote working. 
 
Councillor Murphy asked if officers expected fewer properties to be recovered next 
year. And he asked if the Government’s eviction ban had impacted recovery work. 
Andrew Hyatt said they would see a reduction. The eviction policy didn’t have a huge 
impact. 
 
Councillor Murphy asked if there was a potential risk around electoral registration 
and the impact on our data. Andrew Hyatt said he would need to follow up with 
electoral services. Rhian Davies said officers were currently reviewing whether to 
undertake the canvas. 

ACTION: Andrew Hyatt / Rhian Davies 
 
Councillor Matt Thorley asked if the eviction ban applied in cases of illegal subletting. 
Andrew Hyatt said his team were not taking action where it would cause an eviction 
at this time. If there was any evidence of fraud it would be passed on to Housing. 
 
Councillor Rebecca Harvey asked why fraud with internal staff had seemingly 
doubled (1.5 of the report). Andrew Hyatt said it was due to some issues in a single 
team and it had been dealt with. A full report in December will provide more detail. 
 
Councillor Harvey asked for an explanation ‘succession’ and ‘abandonment’ as they 
related to tenancy fraud (5.8 of the report). Andrew Hyatt explained that ‘succession’ 
was where a family member pretended they were living with a former tenant and 
‘abandonment’ was similar to sub-letting where a tenant had moved. 
 
Councillor Harvey asked if the team attempted to recover the rents earned in 
fraudulent sub-letting cases. Andrew Hyatt said what was handled by Housing and 
he could provide an answer outside of the meeting. 

ACTION: Andrew Hyatt 
 
RESOLVED 
That the Committee noted the report. 
 

Page 8



Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

7. ANTI-FRAUD AND CORRUPTION STRATEGY REVIEW  
 
Andrew Hyatt (Head of Corporate Anti-Fraud) presented the revised Anti-Fraud and 
Corruption Strategy 2020 for review and approval. 
 
The Chair asked if the Covid-19 pandemic and subsequent lockdown had highlighted 
any new types of fraud. Andrew Hyatt said they were looking at the grant funding 
from Central Government – there had only been ‘low friction’ checking so there was 
further work to do going forward to check if people had received grants they 
shouldn’t have. The team were also looking at Council services that have changed 
their processes to check they remained robust. 
 
Councillor Rebecca Harvey asked if remote working had led to any data issues. 
Andrew Hyatt said all staff had undertaken data protection and security training and 
the equipment staff used was encrypted. Veronica Barella (Chief Digital Officer) 
added that robust controls and home working were already in place ahead of the 
Covid-19 lockdown. Digital Services hadn’t come across any examples of misuse of 
data but would work closely with the fraud team if they had any concerns. 
 
RESOLVED 
That the Committee noted and approved the updated anti-fraud and corruption 
strategy. 
 
 

8. RISK MANAGEMENT HIGHLIGHT REPORT  
 
Mike Sloniowski (Risk Manager) presented the report that provided an update on risk 
management across the Council. He noted that he had been supporting the Covid-
19 pandemic response which had had an extraordinary impact on the Council and 
the community. The pandemic response had created a new set of risks to be 
managed, with daily monitoring in the early days. He said the Council had responded 
remarkably well managing those risks. 
 
Councillor Alex Karmel noted that, excluding the pandemic, the most significant risk 
was Hammersmith Bridge. He said he would appreciate clarity over the mitigation 
methods, and timetable – and asked if there were procedures in place if there was a 
total collapse of the bridge. Mike Sloniowski said he would ask the relevant Director 
and emergency planning unit to respond. 

ACTION: Sharon Lea 
 
Councillor Matt Thorley asked for more information on the Community Aid Network 
(CAN) and how they could be used in future. Officers said an update could be 
provided by email. 

ACTION: Mike Sloniowski 
 
Councillor PJ Murphy asked how effective the Council’s local track and trace efforts 
were (recognising the significant issues reported with the national system). Mike 
Sloniowski said local test and trace had recently been implemented and initial 
feedback was positive. David Hughes added that H&F was one of first local 

Page 9



Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

authorities to join track and trace and the Council was getting good data that was 
helping target support. 
 
Councillor Murphy asked if the data quality was better now as there had been some 
difficulty in the early days of the pandemic. David Hughes said the Council was 
benefitting from a robust approach to collecting data. 
 
Councillor Alex Karmel noted that he had been to the mobile testing unit in White 
City with his daughter – they were seen straight away, were out in ten mins, and had 
a result by the following morning. 
 
The Chair asked what the experience had been working across agencies – with the 
NHS etc. Mike Sloniowski said the Council had very good working relationships with 
the CCG and other health partners. 
 
Councillor Jonathan Caleb-Landy highlighted the threat of Covid-19 in care homes 
and asked how well prepared the Council was to ensure a ‘second wave’ didn’t hit 
the most vulnerable in the Council’s care. 
 
Mike Sloniowski said the Council was far better prepared now. There were some 
difficulties initially setting up supply chains for PPE but now those were well 
established and there were ongoing mitigations in place. David Hughes added that 
Social Care had been providing advice and guidance and implementing good 
practice across the borough’s care homes. He also noted that outbreak plans were in 
place for all care homes. 
 
The Chair thanked officers for their report and contributions. 
 
RESOLVED 
That the Committee noted the report. 
 
 

9. HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20  
 
David Hughes (Director of Audit, Fraud, Risk and Insurance) presented the report 
that summarised the work of Internal Audit in 2019/20 and provided his opinion on 
the adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s framework of governance, risk 
management and control. 
 
The item also contained the following Final Internal Audit Reports: 

 Engaging Support Workers Through Agencies 

 Highways Deposits and Refunds 

 Housing Service Charges 

 Cyber Security 
 
Housing Service Charges 
Councillor PJ Murphy noted the shortfall on housing service charge debt recovery 
and asked how many cases that represented and what steps were in place to 
recover the money. Emily Hill said an answer could be circulated to Committee 
members. 

Page 10



Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 
ACTION: Tony Clements  

Highways Deposits and Refunds 
Councillor Alex Karmel noted that some of the rechargeable works issues dated 
back to 2010 and asked for assurances that by April 2021 there would be no cases 
over five years old. David Hughes said officers would ensure they had completed by 
the end of March and would report back to the committee. 

ACTION: David Hughes 
RESOLVED 
That the Committee noted the report. 
 
 

10. INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2020-21  
 
David Hughes (Director of Audit, Fraud, Risk and Insurance) presented the internal 
audit plan for 2020-21. He noted that a lot had changed since the initial work due to 
the Covid-19 pandemic. Fraud and audit teams had been working on emergency 
issues faced by the community and a lot of audit work had been paused. The annual 
report would focus on the Covid-19 pandemic response. 
 
Councillor PJ Murphy asked if a lessons learned exercise was planned for the 
pandemic response work. David Hughes said officers had already been doing 
lessons learned sessions with the internal recovery board. Each department had 
identified a series of measures if there is an escalation in local outbreaks. 
 
RESOLVED 
That the Committee agreed the following: 

 That the plan covered the organisation’s key risks as they are recognised by 
the members of the Committee. 

 That the plan reflected the areas that the Committee believe should be 
covered as priority. 

 That the Committee were satisfied that sufficient assurances were being 
received to monitor the organisation’s risk profile effectively, including any 
emerging issues / key risks not included in our annual plan. 

 
 

11. INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER  
 
David Hughes (Director of Audit, Fraud, Risk and Insurance) presented the item. 
 
RESOLVED 
That the Committee noted the report. 
 
 

12. DATE OF THE NEXT MEETING  
 
The next meeting was scheduled for the 1st of December 2020. 
 
 
 

Page 11



Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 
 

Meeting started: 6.30 pm 
Meeting ended: 8.40 pm 

 
 
Chair   

 
 
 
 
Contact officer David Abbott 

Head of Governance 
 E-mail: david.abbott@lbhf.gov.uk 
 

Page 12



London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham 

 
Report to:  Audit and Pensions Committee 
 
Date: 1 December 2020  
 
Subject:  TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY: MID-YEAR REVIEW 

REPORT 2020/21 
 
Report of:  Phil Triggs, Director of Treasury and Pensions 
 
 

 
Summary 
 
This report provides an update on the implementation (six-month point to 30 
September 2020) of the 2020/21 Treasury Management Strategy approved by 
Council on 26 February 2020 and presents the Treasury Management Strategy 
2020/21 mid-year review.  Treasury management comprises the management of 
the Council’s borrowing to ensure that funding of the Council’s future capital 
programme is at optimal cost and investing surplus cash balances arising from the 
day-to-day financial operation of the Council to obtain an optimal return, while 
ensuring security of capital and liquidity. 

This report complies with CIPFA’s Code of Practice on Treasury Management, and 
covers the following: 

 a review of the Council’s investment portfolio for 2020/21 to include the 
treasury position as at 30 September 2020; 

 a review of the Council’s borrowing strategy for 2020/21; 

 a review of compliance with Treasury and Prudential Limits for the first 
six months of 2020/21; 

 an economic update for the first part of the 2020/21 financial year. 

Recommendations 
 
The Committee is asked to note the Treasury Management Strategy 2020/21 mid-
year review. 
 
 

 
Wards Affected: All 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 13

Agenda Item 4



 
H&F Priorities 
 

Our Priorities Summary of how this report aligns to the 
H&F Priorities  

 Building shared prosperity Achieve best value for money in investment 
and borrowing decisions.  

 Being ruthlessly financially 
efficient 

Effective management of the Council’s cash 
flow resources.  

 
Financial Impact  
 
This report is wholly of a financial nature. 
 
Legal Implications 

 
There are no legal implications arising from this report. 

Implications verified by: Janette Mullins Chief Solicitor (litigation) 

 

 
Contact Officer(s): 
 
Name: Sophie Green  
Position: Treasury Manager 
Telephone: 07816 280 994 
Email: sgreen1@westminster.gov.uk 
Verified by Emily Hill, Director of Finance 
 
Name:  Janette Mullins  
Position: Chief Solicitor (litigation)  
Telephone: 020 8753 2744 
Email: Janette.mullins@lbhf.gov.uk  
 

 
Background Papers Used in Preparing This Report 

 

No. 
 

Description of 
Background Papers 

Name/Ext of holder of 
file/copy 

Department/ 
Location 

 Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement 2020/21 
 

Phil Triggs Tri-Borough 
Treasury and 
Pensions 

 
 

 
 
 

Page 14

mailto:sgreen1@westminster.gov.uk


1. TREASURY POSITION AS AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2020 

1.1 As at 30 September 2020, net cash invested was £40.3m, an increase of 
£6.3m on the position at 31 March 2020 as shown below: 

 

Investments 

1.2 The Council’s Annual Investment Strategy, which forms part of the annual 
Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) for 2020/21, was 
approved by the Council on 26 February 2020. The Council’s policy objective 
is the prudent investment of cash balances to achieve optimum returns on 
investments, subject to maintaining adequate security of capital and a level of 
liquidity appropriate to the Council’s projected need for funds over time. 

1.3 The table below provides a breakdown of investments at 30 September 2020, 

together with comparisons for the previous two financial year ends. 

 

1.4 Liquidity is managed using Money Market Funds (MMFs), providing same day 
liquidity.  The average level of funds available for investment in the first six 
months of 2020/21 was £263.3m.  The Council has chosen to increase the 
allocation in MMFs during the year to ensure liquidity throughout the COVID-
19 pandemic and as a response to the reduced interest rates achievable from 
term deposits. This is reflective of the wider market where interest rates on 
investments and borrowings have fallen in the first half of 2020/21 due to the 
pandemic. 1.5 Monthly investment balances have varied from a high of 
£278.3m in April 2020 to a low of £248.2m in September 2020 as shown on 
the shaded area in the chart below. Average returns have decreased from 
0.70% in April 2020 to 0.20% in September 2020 as shown by the solid line in 
the following chart. 

Page 15



 

1.6 All investments complied with the Annual Investment Strategy.  

1.7 Appendix 1 provides a full list of the Council’s investment limits and exposures 
as at 30 September 2020.  

2.  Borrowing 

2.1 At 30 September 2020, the Council’s long-term borrowing amounted to 
£283.1m and was well within the Prudential Indicator for external borrowing, 
namely that borrowing should not exceed the Capital Financing Requirement1 
(CFR) for 2020/21 of £389.5m2.  

2.2 Currently, the Council is internally borrowed by £106.4m as a result of the 
internal cash resources to fund capital expenditure. 

2.3 The TMSS 2020/21 stated that the Council’s main objective when borrowing 
money is to strike an appropriate balance between securing low interest costs 
and achieving cost certainty over the period for which funds are required. 
Given the Council’s resources available for internal borrowing are expected to 
reduce as capital spending intensifies, the Council needs to maintain flexibility 
to borrow at opportune moments in line with the Prudential Indicators.  

2.4 The table below shows the Council’s external borrowing as at 30 September 

2020 split between the General Fund and HRA. 

 

2.5 Two £20.0m HRA loans were taken out in the first half of 2020/21. The loans 
were taken out at interest rates of 1.26% and 1.25%, driving the average 
interest rate down by 0.2% from 31 March 2020.  

                                            
1
 The CFR measures the Council’s underlying need to borrow for capital purposes. 

2
 CFR figure based on Capital Programme Monitor & Budget Variations Q2 2019/20 Report  

Page 16



 

3. COMPLIANCE WITH TREASURY LIMITS AND PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 

3.1 During the six months of the financial year to 30 September 2020, the 
Council operated within the Treasury Limits and Prudential Indicators set out 
in the TMSS and Budget approved by Council on 26 February 2020 as set 
out below. 

 

C
api
tal 
ex
pe
ndi
tur
e 
an
d 
bor
ro
wi
ng 
lim
its 

3.2 Capital expenditure is forecast to be £100.6m for 2020/21. 

3.3 External borrowing was well within the Capital Financing Requirement, Authorised Borrowing Limit and the Operational Boundary as shown in the table above: 

 T
he Authorised Limit is a level for which the external borrowing cannot be 
exceeded without reporting back to Full Council. It therefore provides 
sufficient headroom such that in the event that the planned capital 
programme required new borrowing to be raised over the medium term, 
if interest rates were deemed favourable and a thorough risk analysis 
determined, the cost of carry was appropriate, this borrowing could be 
raised ahead of when the spend took place. 

 The Operational Boundary is set at a lower level and should take 
account of the most likely level of external borrowing. Operationally, in 
accordance with CIPFA best practice for Treasury Risk Management, a 
liability benchmark is used to determine the point at which any new 
external borrowing should take place.  

3.4 The purpose of the maturity structure of borrowing indicator is to highlight any 
potential refinancing risk that the Council may be facing if, in any one 
particular period, there is a disproportionate level of loans maturing. The table 
below shows that the maturity structure of the Council’s borrowing as at 30 

Page 17



September 2020 is within the limits set and does not highlight any significant 
issues. 

 

3.5 The purpose of the interest rate exposure indicators is to demonstrate the 
extent of exposure to the Council from any adverse movements in interest 
rates. The table at paragraph 5.1 shows that the Council is not subject to any 
adverse movement in interest rates as it only holds fixed interest borrowing.  

3.6 The average rate on the fixed interest borrowing is 3.8% with an average 
redemption period of 24 years. This reflects the historical legacy of borrowing 
taken out some years ago which is higher than PWLB interest rates for 
comparable loans if they were taken out now. Officers have considered loan 
refinancing but the premia for early redemption are prohibitively high, making 
this option poor value for money. 

Investment limits 

3.7 Specified investments are limited to a maximum maturity of less than one 
year. Non–specified investments have a maturity of one year and over. 
Currently, all investments are specified.  

3.8 Whilst the short duration is within approved limits, there is scope within the   
Investment Strategy to extend the duration of investments for up to five years. 
Using longer duration investments and possibly marginally lower credit ratings 
is likely to increase the yield of the investment portfolio. 

4. THE ECONOMY AND INTEREST RATES  

This report is the mid-year review for 2020/21 and therefore reflect the 
economic backdrop at 30 September 2020. Any developments since that 
date will be reflected in the treasury management outturn report. 

4.1 As expected, the Bank of England’s Monetary Policy Committee kept Bank 
Rate unchanged on 16 September 2020. It also kept unchanged the level of 
quantitative easing at £745.0bn. Its forecasts were optimistic in terms of two 
areas:  

 The fall in GDP in the first half of 2020 was revised from -28.0% to -
23.0% (subsequently revised to -21.8%). This is still one of the largest 
falls in output of any developed nation. However, it is only to be expected 

Page 18



as the UK economy is heavily skewed towards consumer-facing services 
– an area which was particularly vulnerable to being damaged by 
lockdown. 

 It forecast that there would be excess demand in the economy by Q3 
2022 causing CPI inflation to rise above the 2.0% target in Q3 2022 
(based on market interest rate expectations for a further loosening in 
policy). Nevertheless, even if the Bank were to leave policy unchanged, 
inflation is still projected to be above 2.0% in 2023. 

4.2  It also does not see a place for using negative interest rates, at least in the 
next six months or so. It suggested that while negative rates can work in 
some circumstances, it would be “less effective as a tool to stimulate the 
economy” at this time when banks are worried about future loan losses. It 
also has “other instruments available”, including further application of QE 
and the use of forward guidance. 

4.3  The MPC expected the £300.0bn of quantitative easing purchases 
announced between its March 2020 and June 2020 meetings to continue 
until the “turn of the year”.  This implies that the pace of purchases will slow 
further to about £4.0bn a week, down from £14.0bn a week at the height of 
the crisis and £7.0bn more recently. 

4.4  In conclusion, this would indicate that the Bank could now wait and observe, 
as the economy was recovering better than expected.  However, the MPC 
acknowledged that the “medium-term projections were a less informative 
guide than usual” and the minutes had multiple references to downside risks, 
which were judged to persist both in the short and medium term. The second 
wave of the virus is now impacting many countries, including Britain. In 
addition, uncertainties ahead of the exit from the EU’s year-end deadline are 
likely to be a drag on recovery.  

4.5  Overall, the pace of recovery is not expected to be in the form of a rapid V-
shape, but a more elongated and prolonged one after a sharp recovery in 
June 2020 through to August 2020 which left the economy 11.7% smaller 
than in February 2020. The last three months of 2020 are now likely to show 
no growth as consumers will probably remain cautious in spending and 
uncertainty over the outcome of the UK/EU trade negotiations concluding at 
the end of the year will also be a headwind. If the Bank felt it did need to 
provide further support to recovery, then it is likely that the tool of choice 
would be additional QE.  

4.6  There will be some painful longer-term adjustments as office space and 
travel by planes, trains and buses may not recover to their previous level of 
use for several years, or possibly ever. There is also likely to be a reversal of 
globalisation as this crisis has shown up how vulnerable long-distance 
supply chains are. On the other hand, digital services are one area that has 
already seen huge growth. 

4.7  One key addition to the Bank’s forward guidance is a new phrase in the 
policy statement, namely, that “it does not intend to tighten monetary policy 

Page 19



until there is clear evidence that significant progress is being made in 
eliminating spare capacity and achieving the 2.0% target sustainably”. In 
other words, even if inflation rises to 2.0% in a couple of years’ time, we 
should not expect any action from the MPC to raise the Bank Rate, until they 
can clearly see that level of inflation is going to be persistently above target if 
it takes no action to raise Bank Rate 

4.8  The Financial Policy Committee (FPC) report on 6 August 2020 revised 
down their expected credit losses for the banking sector to “somewhat less 
than £80.0bn”. It stated that in its assessment “banks have buffers of capital 
more than sufficient to absorb the losses that are likely to arise under the 
MPC’s central projection”. The FPC stated that for real stress in the sector, 
the economic output would need to be twice as bad as the MPC’s projection, 
with unemployment rising to above 15.0%.  

 

     PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 

5.1 The Local Government Act 2003 requires the Council to have regard to the 
Prudential Code and to set Prudential Indicators for the next three years to 
ensure that the Council’s capital investment plans are affordable, prudent 
and sustainable. These are contained within this report. 

6.   Reasons for Decision 
 

6.1 This report presents the Council’s mid-year Treasury Management Strategy 
half-year review for 2019/20 in accordance with the Council’s Treasury 
Management Practices. It is a regulatory requirement for this report to be 
presented to the Council. 

6.2 The Council has, within its Constitution, nominated the Audit and Pensions 
Committee to be responsible for the effective scrutiny of the Treasury 
Management Strategy and policies. 

6.2 The report notes that the Council has complied with all elements of the 
Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS).  

7. Equality Implications  
 

7.1 The report is for noting so there are no equality implications for groups with 
protected characteristics (under the Equality Act 2010) as a result of this   
report. 
 

7.2 Implications verified by Fawad Bhatti, tel. 07500 103617. 
 
 
 

 
8. Risk Management Implications 

 

Page 20



8.1  Treasury Management contributes to all the Council Values and Delivery of 
Objectives. Management of treasury risks are commensurate to the risk 
appetite of the Council. The effective understanding, control and management 
of the many aspects of risk associated with treasury management are 
essential to achieving an authority’s objectives. Risk management is therefore 
embedded throughout treasury guidance, policies and practices. In adopting a 
policy of managing risk, an authority is determining its level of risk 
acceptance. 
 

8.2 Treasury risks present themselves in many forms, from failure to optimise 

performance by not taking advantage of opportunities, to managing exposure 

to changing economic circumstances, most recently the situation has been 

somewhat uncertain due to negotiations over Trade following the UK’s 

departure from the European Union and the impact of Covid-19 on the global 

economy.  

 
8.3 The key challenge is to understand, identify, monitor and manage risks in a 

planned and effective way. Local authorities are required to report annually to 
full council on their treasury management strategy (TMS) before the start of 
the year, which sets the objectives and boundaries for the approach to 
treasury activity.  

 
8.4 The authority supplements this with treasury management practice schedules 

(TMPs), which set out the practical arrangement to achieve those objectives. 
The TMPs inform the day-to-day practices applied to manage and control 
treasury activities. Local authorities are typically financially risk averse and 
greatly value stability in order to inform council tax and housing rent levels, 
through to general fund and HRA budgets.  

 
8.5 Implications verified by: Michael Sloniowski, Risk Manager, tel. 0208 753 

2587. 
 

9. Other Implications  
 

9.1The local economy in H&F is likely to contract between 7 and 13% based on 
projections from Oxford Economics, the Council's ability to continue with 
major projects will be crucial to support wider recovery efforts.  The 
capital programme represents significant expenditure within the Borough and, 
consequently, where supplies are sourced locally, changes in borrowing or 
investment may impact either positively or negatively on local contractors and 
sub-contractors. Where capital expenditure increases, or is brought forward, 
this may have a beneficial impact on local businesses; conversely, where 
expenditure decreases, or is slipped, there may be an adverse impact on local 
businesses.  
 

9.2 Implications verified/completed by: Kamal Motalib, Economic Development 
Team, tel. 07739 316 957. 

 
10. Consultation 

 

Page 21



10.1 Consultation took place with the Council’s investment advisor, Link Asset 
Services, in respect of the Economic and Interest Rate update.  

 
List of Appendices: 
 
Appendix 1: Investment Limits and Exposures at 30 September 2020. 
 
Appendix 1 
Limits and exposures as at 30 September 2020 
 

 

Page 22



London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

 
Report to:   Audit and Pensions Committee 
 
Date:  01/12/2020 
 
Subject: Annual Health and Safety at Work Report 2019 / 2020 
 
Report of: Paul Barton, Head of Corporate Safety 
 
Responsible Director: Strategic Director for Economy  
 

 
Summary 
This report highlights the Council’s activities and performance in health and safety at 
work during financial year 2019 / 2020. It also recommends priorities for the coming 
financial year. 
 

 
Recommendation 
 
For the Committee to note and comment on the report. 
 

 
Wards Affected: None 
 

 
Legal implications 
‘Except in such cases as may be prescribed, it shall be the duty of every employer to 
prepare and as often as may be appropriate revise a written statement of [the] 
general policy with respect to the health and safety at work of [the] employees and 
the organisation and arrangements for the time being in force for carrying out that 
policy, and to bring the statement and any revision of it to the notice of all of [the] 
employees’. (Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974. section 2(3). 
 
The policy statement, signed the leader and the chief executive, is displayed in all 
LBHF workplaces.  The organisation and arrangements for health and safety at work 
in LBHF are found on the intranet and available in paper copy on request.   
 
Financial implications  
No change. A budget is allocated for training of safety responders (Nominated First 
Aiders, Fire Evacuation Officers, Evacuation Chair Operators) as identified in policy, 
which is coordinated by corporate health and safety.   
 
Health and safety at work is equal to all other business LBHF.  Tier 2 and tier 3 
managers are required under policy to budget for health and safety at work 
accordingly.  Similarly, under policy, the council must ensure that the decisions they 
make take account of health and safety and that resources are allocated for this 
purpose.  

Page 23

Agenda Item 5



 
Contact Officer: 
 
Name: Paul Barton 
Position: Head of Corporate Safety 
Telephone: 07917 553 589 
Email: Paul.barton@lbhf.gov.uk 
 

 
 
DETAILED ANALYSIS 
 
Key points of note 
A revised corporate health and safety policy was introduced to show disaggregation 
and realignment of sovereign services.   
 
There was no enforcement action taken against the Council by the Health and Safety 
Executive (HSE) in this year.  Seven injuries were reportable to HSE during the year.  
These are detailed below.  No dangerous occurrences, occupational disease cases 
or gas safety incidents were reportable to HSE during the year.  
 
Ongoing operational support was given to the ‘Hello Future’ directive and decant 
project by Corporate Health and Safety. Advice was provided on provision and duties 
of safety responders (nominated first aiders and fire evacuation officers), display 
screen equipment and fire evacuation safety.  
 
At the end of the financial year the coronavirus pandemic struck.  Procurement and 
mobilisation of personal protective equipment within the borough to workplaces and 
partnership agencies commenced at pace during the first two weeks of a national 
lockdown.  Food banks run by voluntary workers were in the advanced planning 
stage as the year closed.  The corporate health and safety audit programme 
timetable for the forthcoming financial year was halted to concentrate on necessary 
resulting reactive work.  
 
Accidents, injuries and near-miss incidents  
Appendix 1 details accidents, injuries and near-miss incidents during the year 2019 / 
2020.  There were seven incidents reportable to the Health and Safety Executive 
(HSE), six being injuries to employees and one to a member of the public.   
 
This gives the Council an incidence rate of 10.51, calculated on a full-time equivalent 
establishment of 1,837 employees for the year 2019 / 2020 and a RIDDOR incidence 
rate of 3.8.  This is our baseline figure because the incidence rate for the previous 
year is unknown due to unavailability of data on FTE establishment at 31st March 
2019.   
 
Table 1 provides an overview of incidents reported to HSE.   
 

Date Category Type Department 

                                            
1
 Calculated on all injury and violence intimidating behaviour incidents (193)  

Page 24

mailto:Paul.barton@lbhf.gov.uk


30th Oct Fracture Struck by falling object  Schools 

28th Feb Over 7-day injury Slip trip or fall Corp. Property & 
FM 

5th Dec Fracture Slip trip or fall Schools 

20th Dec Over 7-day injury  Physical assault Provided Services  

13th Aug Fracture Physical assault Corp. Property & 
FM 

9th July Fracture Slip trip or fall Decant project 

20th Aug Over 7-day injury Slip trip or fall Complaints & 
Improvements 

Table 1.  Incidents reported to HSE during financial year 2019 / 2020 
 

All incidents that are reportable to HSE are investigated by Corporate Health and 
Safety, seeking to make recommendations to prevent recurrence and requiring 
services to review risk assessments.   
 
Additional control measures implemented directly from recommendations arising 
from such investigations include 

 Security improvements to the Cobbs Hall building in Fulham Palace Road,  

 Improvements to marking the presence of a step were made to the landlord’s 
managing agent of 45 Beavor Lane Hammersmith, which the landlord has 
accepted and has rectified.   

 Procurement tendering for improved conflict resolution and ‘breakaway’ 
training for all employees. 

 An overhaul of the policy for employee personal safety, including those that 
work alone. 

 Ongoing reminders to care workers of the need for regular care plan risk 
assessment reviews of children and adults that have protected characteristics.   

 Ongoing commitment to annually safety audit every community school, SEND 
schools and academy school in the buy-back scheme 

 
Overall 283 incidents were reported in the year.  88 of these were accident injuries, 
105 were violence and intimidation incidents, 16 were near miss incidents 7 were 
dangerous occurrences (non-HSE reportable) and 67 were ‘other’ types of incident.  
 
Incidents in the category ‘other’ were examined for trends and patterns.  A sample 
revealed 43 percent were miscoded threatening incidents, 30 percent were concern 
for client welfare (mostly due to substance abuse), 27 percent were security 
incidents. 
 
Risk of injury to staff from violent behaviour at the Haven were mitigated in line with 
the setting’s ongoing behaviour management policy. At mid-year report the council 
noted a rise in violent incidents here, but it was shown that improvement in reporting 
culture had taken place, alongside already established mitigations; for example, 
care-plan review undertaken after every incident and the way in which this linked 
back to the overall risk control of the setting.   
 
Comparing the overall violent incident figures with the previous financial year, there 
shows a rise in violence and intimation incidents of 36 percent on last year’s figures.  

Page 25



A similar rise in the number of injuries at work is also shown as 24 percent up on the 
previous year.   
 
In light of these increases and to further reduce the risk of violence towards 
employees so far as is reasonably practicable, a review of conflict resolution training 
was carried out and suggestion made for a ‘zero tolerance’ poster campaign on 
violence towards staff, akin to that promulgated by Transport for London.  The 
training review recommended a corporate approach to conflict resolution training, 
which will be further developed in the next financial year.  It is of note that the 
majority of violent incidents are from dysregulated behaviour by vulnerable clients in 
care.  These incidents are investigated and reviewed individually every time and care 
plans amended to reflect any changes where identified.  
 
Slip, trip and fall accidents were the main causes of other employee injuries during 
this year.  There is no overall pattern as to why there was an increase in the number 
of injuries to employees during this year.  In the second half of the year a 
communication to all staff from the corporate health and safety team reminded that 
all injuries from accidents at work must be recorded on the accident and incident 
reporting system (AIRS) and not just in the first aid logbook.  It could therefore be 
conjectured that the rise in injury reports was due to an increased awareness in 
reporting culture, following this reminder. 
 
Table 2 shows comparison between the safety incident reporting figures for this 
financial year and the previous year. 
 

2019 / 2020 2018 / 2019 
Accidents resulting in injury 88 Accidents resulting in injury 64 

Violence and intimidation 105 Violence and intimidation 77 

Other 67 Other 42 

Near miss 16 Near miss 10 

Dangerous occurrence  7 Dangerous occurrence 8 

Table 2.  Safety incident reporting. Comparison 2019/2020 with 2018/2019 

 
Realignment of corporate health and safety  
 
An internal audit report in January 2018 concluded a limited assurance adequacy of 
the corporate health and safety team.  A realignment of the service was 
subsequently completed during this year. 
 
The health and safety policy was revised as part of corporate health and safety 
realignment.  It makes improvements in areas such as consultation, control of 
contractors, use of volunteers, contract managers and commissioning officers, more 
clarity around schools and a streamlined reporting structure for health and safety.  
The policy details the organisation and arrangements necessary to underpin the 
Council’s health and safety management system, following disaggregation from the 
tri and bi-borough partnership.  The policy is designed to make changes with a 
minimum amount of disruption to existing channels of communication, consultation, 
competency and cooperation.  A revised policy and statement of intention was 
introduced and is attached at appendix 2. 
 

Page 26



The SLT dashboard within the corporate risk register was revised to show health and 
safety as a separate risk entry.  The separation was made in order to provide a 
greater clarity and distinction from other corporate risks, such as those associated 
with statutory breach of human rights and statutory breach of data protection.  The 
rationale was agreed by the corporate risk manager, thus setting the strategic 
approach for corporate health and safety management, where in the current climate 
fines for non-fatal workplace accidents can cost local authorities up to one million 
pounds as well as significant reputational damage. 
 
An operational health and safety risk register was formulated to ensure live 
document access to progress on actions arising from risk assessment review, 
workplace safety audits and inspections.  The operational risk register is updated 
and presented monthly to the Assurance Risk Operations Group (AROG) and 
quarterly to the Health and Safety Board.  The register provides clarity on the 
directorates accountable and the services responsible for remedial actions and 
mitigations listed.   
 
A corporate health and safety business change plan 2019 to 2021 identifies key 
milestones to achieve service excellence.  It outlines the need for a health and safety 
management system assessment software tool to upgrade the tri-borough 
assessment system.   
 
A health and safety board was inaugurated during this year to oversee health and 
safety management throughout the authority.  Chaired by the strategic director for 
health and safety, it convenes quarterly, or more often if required to.   
 
Health and Safety Audit Programme 
Audits across all areas of the Council were completed during the year.  A plan of 
works schedule is available from Corporate Health and Safety.  Audits are on target 
across all services and planning is in progress for the 2020 / 2021 programme. 
 
Social Care 
Fifty sites were selected in Adult Social Care for audit during 2019 / 2020 and are on 
target for completion by the end of March 2020.  Six sites were re-inspected in the 
Supported Housing Service.  This was to follow up on audits highlighting an absence 
of remedial action planning for works identified in fire risk assessments and electrical 
installation condition reports.  The re-inspections revealed that managers of selected 
sites had now placed works requests for remedial action with Corporate Property 
and that documents were now available and up to date.  Three of the centres in the 
original audit sample were now closed.   
 
Schools 
A sample of twenty schools were selected for audit during this financial year and 
these are on target for completion by end of March 2020.  Audits so far reveal very 
good overall progress.   
 
Asbestos management in schools remains a national concern.  Results from the 
DfE’s Asbestos Management Assurance Process saw only 75 percent of schools 
and academies in England and Wales responding to the DfE’s instruction to 
undertake the process.  Of this 75 percent, 3.5 percent were referred to the Health 

Page 27



and Safety Executive because they could not provide enough evidence that they 
were managing asbestos in line with regulatory requirements.  Although current 
audits in the borough show good progress in this area of health and safety 
management, further checks on asbestos management will form an additional 
themed series of inspections from March 2020 onwards and carry into the next 
financial year.  The risk has been moderately heightened on the workplan to reflect 
our acknowledgment of the DfE’s national findings and to reflect the return to in-
house asbestos management under Children’s Services from consultants 3BM.  
 
Continued membership of EVOLVE and CLEAPPS was recommended by Corporate 
health and safety. 
 
 
 
Corporate Buildings  
Audits: fifty premises were audited during the year.  Of note were Linford Christie 
stadium, where improvement works from this and a previous health and safety report 
were completed to water systems; The Haven, where glazing was made safer to 
prevent injury through self-harm;  
 
A case of pneumonia in a colleague working in 145 King Street generated an 
investigation into a potential cause possibly being associated with the building 
environment.  It was the fifth case from the building.  Corporate Health and Safety 
examined sickness absence patterns for the teams on the third and second floors.   
A wider survey than the original indicative one planned was recommended by 
Corporate Health and Safety.  The survey was widened to a full independent ‘sick 
building syndrome’ survey.  Head of Corporate Safety met with the OH Physician to 
discuss the cases.  This part of the investigation revealed that the diseases 
contracted by colleagues were not directly attributable to the building environment, 
plant or work equipment.  The other aspect of ‘sick building syndrome’ is work-
related stress and this was being investigated by Corporate Health and Safety until 
lockdown, with full cooperation from service managers.   
 
The fire risk assessment review programme continues across the Council.  In 
Corporate Property.  Significant findings from fire risk assessment reviews were 
entered onto the Operational Risk Register to expedite remedial actions and 
mitigations for the first part of year.  Once it was established that remedial works 
were planned and executed accordingly the assessment process was contracted out 
to an FCS consultant.  In Economy, including Housing, the Fire Safety Compliance 
and Works Services undertake and coordinate fire risk assessments.   
 
Decant of staff away from Hammersmith Town Hall and Extension into hub 
workplaces, plus a welcomed increase in agile and flexible remote working, has led 
to pockets of shortages in the provision of nominated first aiders and fire evacuation 
officers in new workplaces across the authority.  A gap analyses was conducted by 
Corporate Health and Safety and a resulting advertisement on our intranet during the 
summer called for volunteers in the new workplace buildings.  Take up of volunteers 
was reasonably good and ongoing at the end of the year.  
 
Environment 

Page 28



 
A health and safety board within the Environment directorate was set-up during the 
year to periodically examine health and safety matters.  It feeds into the corporate 
health and safety board to ensure reciprocity, enabling directorate health and safety 
goals to be aligned to corporate goals and directorate matters to be raised to Health 
and Safety Board when necessary.  It is further linked to the Environment JCC, 
where trades unions are able to discuss safety matters with the directorate. 
 
Furthermore, Public Realm have a health and safety committee for some of our 
higher hazard services, including cleansing and waste, parks and civil enforcement 
officers.  
 
Office moves and display screen equipment  
All staff that are display screen equipment users and that are relocating under the 
decant project were instructed to undertake an updated display screen equipment 
(DSE) assessment.  
 
The DSE assessment system was ‘re-loaded’ after a series of meetings.  Technical 
obstacles around files extant from the bi-borough arrangement were largely 
overcome.  The data feed launch reached around 2,196 users and added a further 
300 users since January 2019.  About 500 users had ‘bad pathways’ and these will 
divert to a dedicated inbox.  The inbox will be monitored over time by Corporate 
Health and Safety to ascertain line manager details.  This result achieves 
compliance amongst a majority.  A more recent file of exclusively LBHF staff has 
been compiled by People and Talent and passed under secure cover by IT to the 
system provider.  It is hoped this latest file will help to root out ‘bad pathways’ and 
improve the compliance data set.  Corporate Health and Safety Continue to monitor 
and keep close watch.   
 
Performance  
A new operational risk registered was introduced, distributed and discussed at 
Assurance and Risk Officer’s Group (AROG) on 24th July 2019.  The operational risk 
register covers both reactive and proactive monitoring. 
 
Priorities for the coming year 2020 / 2021 
From the emerging picture at the end of the financial year 2019 / 2020, health and 
safety at work priorities for the council will be determined and dictated by the 
coronavirus pandemic.  At the end of the financial year 2019 / 2020, it is hard to 
gauge the full extent or duration of the pandemic’s effect on the council’s employees 
and those with whom we interact.  Health and safety is a key component in all levels 
of the response.  
 
If and where there is scope to do so, within the emerging emergency situation, other 
priorities for 2020 and 2021, established through active and reactive monitoring 
during the year, are recommended as follows: 

 Improve transport safety management at Bagley’s Lane depot 
 Improve asbestos management plan knowledge within schools  
 Continue ongoing client-side health and safety scrutiny overview of the West 

King Street Renewal (WKSR) project, particularly the refurbishment of 
Hammersmith Town Hall to help achieve the target completion date. 

Page 29



 Revamp the employee personal safety, including lone working, policy 
 Review the work-related stress policy and procedures 
 Procure improved health and safety management system software 
 Produce an improved corporate employee protection register, to allow 

confidence in ease of use and to discontinue all local and departmental 
registers. 

 
Equality implications 
There are no equality implications in this report.  
 

  

Page 30



Appendix 1 – Safety Incidents 2019/20 

 

Safety incidents during financial year 2019 / 2020 

 

What has happened? 
How 
many 

Dangerous Occurrence 7 

Injury Accident 88 

Near Miss 16 

Other Incident 67 

Violence and Intimidation Incident 105 
 

What team are you part of? 
how 
many 

Adult Learning and Skills 1 

Allocations Service 1 

Appeals Team 1 

Arts and Culture Management and Admin 1 

Askew Road Library 23 

Assessment Teams 1 

Bi-Borough Human Resources 1 

BPM Technical Support 2 

Building and Property Management 2 

Building Control 1 

Business and Enterprise 1 

Central Services Client Management 1 

Chelsea Library 4 

Community Support Service 2 

Contact Service 2 

Coroners Service 1 

Day Opportunities Imperial Wharf 2 

Director of Family Services - LBHF 1 

Director of Finance and Resources 1 

Director of Housing 8 

Director of Housing Services 1 

Early Help Service 2 

Economy and Infrastructure 2 

Electoral Support Services 1 

Env Admin Technical Team 1 1 

Estate Support and Security 8 

Family Services Front Door Team 1 

Fulham Library 24 

Hammersmith Library 19 

Head of Compliance and Health and Safety 1 

Head of Economy and Infrastructure 1 

Head of Housing Advice and Assessment 1 

Page 31



Head of Rental Income 1 

Health and Safety 2 

Highways and Construction 1 

Hostels Management 4 

Housing Advice 7 

Housing Assessment and Reviews 5 

Housing Services North 10 

Imperial Wharf Resource Centre 3 

Kensington Central Library 2 

LAC and Care Leavers 1 

LBHF Building Control 1 

LBHF Corporate Finance and Systems 1 

LBHF LAC and Care Leavers 1 

LBHF Pest Control Service 1 

LBHF Registrars 2 

Management and Support 1 

Markets and Street Trading 1 

Mental Health Team Ellerslie Road 1 

Middle Base 3 

Neighbourhood Wardens - HRA 2 

New PSL Scheme 3 

North Base 8 

North Team 1 

Options Day Service 7 

Parking Enforcement 6 

Parks and Open Spaces 3 

Parks Police 3 1 

Pay and Park 1 

Prison Library Service 1 

Private Housing - Standards 1 

Property Compliance Team 2 

Property Services and Regeneration - Operational and Engineering 2 

Property Services Head of Operations 1 

Quality Monitoring 1 

Reablement Team LBHF 2 

Recovery - Taxation Team 1 

Rehousing Options (HRA) 1 

Rent Income Team FCS 1 

Resident Involvement 1 

Revs and Bens Operations 1 

Rivercourt Respite Service 1 

Rough Sleeping 1 

Sensory and Language Impairment 1 

Service Quality Team 1 

Sheltered Housing North 2 

Sheltered Housing South 4 

Page 32



Shepherds Bush Library 16 

South Base 4 

St Mary's & Out of Borough Hospital Team 2 1 

The Haven Centre 36 

Waste Contract Management 1 

West London Strategic Partnership 1 
 
  

Page 33



Appendix 2 
 

Health and Safety Policy 
Statement of Intention 

 
 
We will strive to be the best by aiming to continuously improve health and safety 
performance through our governance arrangements; where management of risks 
arising in respect of health and safety at work forms an integral part of our business 
decision making process.  
  
We recognise and accept our duty to provide and maintain a safe and healthy work 
environment for our employees, partners and others affected by our activities.  We 
recognise the need for a sensible and proportionate approach to managing health 
and safety.  
 
Each employee has a duty to co-operate in the operation of the health and safety 
policy by taking care of their own health and safety and that of others who may be 
affected by their actions or inaction and to cooperate with us by complying with any 
legal duty or requirement.  
 
The health and safety policy details particulars of the organisation and arrangements 
for the management of health and safety within the London Borough of 
Hammersmith and Fulham.  It is important that we all adhere to it and remember that 
the most powerful message we can send is through our own visible behaviour. 
 

Page 34



London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

 
Report to:   Audit and Pensions Committee 
 
Date:  01/12/2020 
 
Subject: Mid-year health and safety at work report 2020 / 2021 
 
Report of: Paul Barton, Head of Corporate Safety 
 
Responsible Director: Strategic Director for Economy  
 

 
Summary 
This report highlights the Council’s activities and performance in health and safety at 
work at the half-year stage in financial year 2020 / 2021.  It also recommends 
priorities for the remainder of the financial year. 
 

 
Recommendation 
 
For the Committee to note and comment on the report. 
 

 
Wards Affected: None 
 

 
Legal implications 
‘Except in such cases as may be prescribed, it shall be the duty of every employer to 
prepare and as often as may be appropriate revise a written statement of [the] 
general policy with respect to the health and safety at work of [the] employees and 
the organisation and arrangements for the time being in force for carrying out that 
policy, and to bring the statement and any revision of it to the notice of all of [the] 
employees’. (Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974. section 2(3). 
 
The policy statement, signed the leader and the chief executive, is displayed in all 
LBHF workplaces.  The organisation and arrangements for health and safety at work 
in LBHF are found on the intranet and available in paper copy on request.   
 
Financial implications  
No change.  A budget is allocated for training of safety responders (Nominated First 
Aiders, Fire Evacuation Officers, Evacuation Chair Operators) as identified in policy, 
which is coordinated by corporate health and safety.   
 
Health and safety at work is equal to all other business LBHF.  Tier 2 and tier 3 
managers are required under policy to budget for health and safety at work 
accordingly.  Similarly, under policy, the council must ensure that the decisions they 
make take account of health and safety and that resources are allocated for this 
purpose. 

Page 35

Agenda Item 6



 
Contact Officer: 
 
Name: Paul Barton 
Position: Head of Corporate Safety 
Telephone: 07917 553 589 
Email: Paul.barton@lbhf.gov.uk 
 

 
DETAILED ANALYSIS 
 
Key points of note 
The corporate health and safety team, like many services in Hammersmith and 
Fulham Council, has mostly been working in a reactive mode during the pandemic.   
 
There was no enforcement action taken against the Council by the Health and Safety 
Executive (HSE) in this period.  Three injuries have been reportable to HSE during 
this year so far.  These are detailed below.  No dangerous occurrences, occupational 
disease cases or gas safety incidents were reportable to HSE during this year so far.  
 
Ongoing operational support is given to the pandemic by the corporate health and 
safety team. Advice is provided on personal protective equipment for frontline 
services and for display screen equipment safety when working at home.   
 
Changes to the provision and duties of safety responders was necessitated by the 
pandemic, with additional management roles identified in policy.  These were for 
appointed first aid duties and duties for fire evacuation coordination. This was done 
to support existing nominated first aiders and fire evacuation officers  
 
 

1. Coronavirus response from the corporate health and safety team 
 

Personal protective equipment (PPE) was immediately in demand at the start of the 
pandemic. With the council’s fast-track response to local needs, corporate health 
and safety undertook a verification process for PPE procurement, with key safety 
aspects of a policy to back it up.  As well as certificate of conformity checking on 
numerous items of newly imported PPE, the team were also overseeing assurance 
that demand was being met in accordance with the respective settings’ risk 
assessments. 
 
PPE for in-house essential frontline services was also verified by the team to ensure 
the correct equipment was provided to colleagues in relevant employment groups.  
Over 5 million items of PPE were procured and distributed across the borough to 
care homes, registered disabled children, carers and our vulnerable and shielding 
residents   
 
Training, advice and support was expanded to include voluntary and certain charity 
sectors -for example, Mencap (Hammersmith) and the food bank projects in the 
borough.  
 

Page 36

mailto:Paul.barton@lbhf.gov.uk


A risk assessment process for individual employees was formulated through 
partnership working with the NHS and our Wellness Centre.  Modifications were 
made to nearly every employment group within the council.  The largest of these by 
far was the relocation of office duties to the home environment, which involved 1,700 
workers.  This was made possible through the council’s foresight of agile working, 
manifest in the provision of laptops to the majority of staff during 2019.  In early 
summer corporate health and safety then commenced verification of all display 
screen equipment risk assessment reviews, ensuring equipment provided to home 
workers during the pandemic was reasonably practicable while the national situation 
continued. 
 
As preparations began for the end of lockdown [the first lockdown], corporate health 
and safety provided advice and recommendations for the safe reoccupation 
workplaces in reduced numbers.  The fundamental change here was to our policy on 
safety responders: first aiders and fire evacuation officers.  Policy now requires all 
management grade officers to undertake basic response duties for both first aid and 
fire evacuation, to supplement our fully trained complement.  To this end, basic 
training is provided to management grade officers through the IBC Learning Zone.    
 
2 Staff wellbeing during the pandemic 
 
Wellbeing is spearheaded by People & Talent.  Diverse and wide-ranging wellbeing 
initiatives have been developed to support the personal resilience of our workforce 
during the pandemic and recovery.  
 
The success of these initiatives is demonstrated through extremely positive 
outcomes evidenced from the ‘outstanding’ employee attendance statistics and 
survey results, which have been gathered during the pandemic.  The datasets 
demonstrate significant employee engagement which has had a direct positive 
impact on the resilience of H&F to support the delivery of critical key services 
throughout an extremely challenging and difficult period. 
 
Of particular note is the success of the Wellbeing Wednesday sessions, the launch 
of the ‘supporting your personal resilience’ intranet pages and the regularity and tone 
of the communications which have been published throughout the lockdown period. 
 
A detailed report was presented at Political Cabinet by People and Talent on 6th July 
2020. 
 

3 Accidents, injuries and near-miss incidents  
 
Appendix 1 details accidents, injuries and near-miss incidents at the mid-year point 
2020/2021.  Four injuries so far have been reportable to the health and safety 
executive (HSE), all being injuries to employees.   
  

Page 37



Table 1 provides an overview of incidents reported to HSE.   
 

Date Category Type Department 

4th May Over 7-day injury Slip, trip or fall  Corp. Property & 
FM 

8th June Over 7-day injury Another type of accident 
(road traffic collision. 
Employee 1)  
 

Environmental 
enforcement team 

8th June Over 7-day injury Another type of accident 
(road traffic collision. 
Employee 2)  
 

Environmental 
enforcement team 

2nd July Fracture / Over 7-
day injury 

Physical assault Civil enforcement 
team 

Table 1.  Incidents reported to HSE at mid-year financial year 2020 / 2021 
 

All incidents that are reportable to HSE are investigated by Corporate Health and 
Safety, seeking to make recommendations to prevent recurrence and requiring 
services to review risk assessments.   
 
Additional control measures implemented directly from recommendations arising 
from such investigations include 

 Review of driving at work policy, associated training, driver checks and 
vehicle checks to be completed in the early part of 2021; 

 Review of zero tolerance policy on violence against staff: work in progress, 
with outstanding recommendation for a ‘zero tolerance’ poster campaign by 
the early part of 2021. 

 
Overall, 67 incidents were reported in the first half of this year.  31 of these were 
accident injuries, 24 were violence and intimidation incidents, 3 were near miss 
incidents, 0 were dangerous occurrences (non-HSE reportable) and 9 were ‘other’ 
types of incident.  
 
A reduction in all incidents from last year’s midyear report is noted, with the 
exception of incidents resulting in injuries, which has risen slightly.  It is noteworthy 
that violence and intimidation incidents have reduced by nearly half, which is 
perhaps a reflection of there being less front facing customer services in operation 
during lockdown and post-lockdown.    
 
Last year’s promulgation of correctly coding safety incidents appears to have the 
positive result of less being entered in the category of ‘other’, a reduction to 9 from 
last year’s 35 at this point.  
  

Page 38



Table 2 shows comparison between the safety incident reporting figures for this 
financial mid-year and this period in the previous year. 
 

2020 / 2021 2019 / 2020 
Accidents resulting in injury 31 Accidents resulting in injury 25 

Violence and intimidation 24 Violence and intimidation 44 

Other 9 Other 35 

Near miss 3 Near miss 11 

Dangerous occurrence  0 Dangerous occurrence 5 

Table 2.  Safety incident reporting. Comparison 2020/2021 midyear with 2019/2020 

 
4 Health and safety board.  Summary of this period  
 

During the first half of this financial year, the health and safety board has advised 
and moved forward the following items:  

 Personal protective equipment policy. A revised policy for the pandemic to 
cover the new demands from commissioned services, partner agencies and 
charities in time of local and national urgency; 

 Risk assessments during COVID-19. Agreement on processes for corporate 
approach in the risk management of essential services remaining in the 
borough during lockdown and, later on, a corporate approach to post-
lockdown risk assessment and safe return to work approaches, including safe 
return to council buildings that are places of work; 

 Display screen equipment (DSE) at home. Advice on a holding position during 
lockdown and further advice and procedure for provision of DSE during 
ongoing working from home during post-lockdown, inputting into guidance on 
new ways of working agenda; 

 Personal safety policy, including lone working. Discussion and 
recommendation to SLT of ratification of revised policy document. 

 Driving at work policy.  Recommendation from the board to convene a policy 
review group for driving at work;  

 Amendment to the operational risk register to identify the assistant director or 
chief officer for each entry; 

 Changes to policy regarding appointed first aid duties and fire evacuation 
coordination duties for managers 

 
5 Health and Safety Audit Programme 

 
Audits across all main areas of the Council that were carried over from the previous 
financial year were completed by lockdown in March 2020.  A plan of works schedule 
is available from Corporate Health and Safety.  Audits are delayed through reactive 
response to the pandemic, although programme was on track at lockdown and will 
return to programme to straddle financial years. 
 
Risk profiling of all council services has commenced to review the organisational 
health and safety risk profile.  This will be completed by the end of the financial year 
and seeks to inform improvement to the internal health and safety audit structure. 
 
 
 
 

Page 39



6 Performance  
 
The operational risk register covers both reactive and proactive monitoring and is 
now distributed to the health and safety board every eight weeks through Microsoft 
Teams.  
 
 

7 Update on priorities for 2020 / 2021 
 
Health and safety at work priorities for the council are currently determined and 
dictated by the coronavirus pandemic.  Health and safety is a key component in all 
levels of the response.  
 
COVID-19 risk assessments are regularly under review, with the corporate health 
and safety service reporting into the technical assurance group on review 
compliance. 
 
If and where there is scope to do so, other priorities for 2020 and 2021, established 
through active and reactive monitoring during the year, are recommended as follows: 

 Improve transport safety management at Bagley’s Lane depot.  New gates 
have been fitted and vehicle segregations markings improved.  Usage of the 
workshops has been given more clarity and direction to avoid ad-hoc un-
controlled usage.  

 
 Improve asbestos management plan knowledge within schools.  Many school 

premises managers and business managers have been trained in asbestos 
awareness so far this year.  Ongoing meetings with our competent asbestos 
adviser for schools are exploring ways to improve local asbestos 
management records.  This compliance criterion is also audited by the 
corporate health and safety team.  
 

 Continue ongoing client-side health and safety scrutiny overview of the West 
King Street Renewal (WKSR) project, particularly the refurbishment of 
Hammersmith Town Hall to help achieve the target completion date.  
Corporate health and safety continue to attend meetings, giving client-side 
input and advice. 

 
 The employee personal safety policy, including lone working, has been 

completed. 
 

 Review is taking place of the work-related stress policy and procedure, 
including the procedure for risk assessment and analysis of data from work-
related stress risk assessment.  The work is ongoing to the end of the 
financial year. 
 

 An improved health and safety management system software program is at 
the tendering stage of procurement.  The tri-borough systems becomes 
increasingly outmoded and a replacement system is sought by the end of this 
financial year. 
 

Page 40



 An improved corporate employee protection register, to allow confidence in 
ease of use and to discontinue all local and departmental registers, is being 
developed with help from Digital Services. 

 
8 Equality implications 

 
There are no equality implications in this report.  
 

  

Page 41



Appendix A - Safety incidents during first half of financial year 

2020-21 

Safety incidents during first half of financial year 2020 / 2021 

What has happened? Number 

Injury Accident 31 

Near Miss 3 

Other Incident 9 

Violence and Intimidation Incident 24 
 

What team are you part of? how many 

Community Safety 1 

Community Support Service 1 

Economy and Infrastructure 1 

Estate Support and Security 3 

Housing Advice 2 

LBHF Contracts and Enforcement 2 

Mental Health Team Ellerslie Road 1 

Neighbourhood Wardens - HRA 1 

North Base 2 

Parking Enforcement 6 

Parks and Open Spaces 1 

Parks Police 3 1 

Property Services Head of Operations 1 

Sheltered Housing North 3 

South Base 7 

The Haven Centre 30 

Youth Offending Team LBHF 1 
 

Page 42



 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

 
Report to:  Audit and Pensions Committee 
 
Date:  01/12/2020 
 
Subject: Corporate Anti-Fraud Service Half-Year Activity Report – 1 April 2020 

to 30 September 2020 
 
Report of:  David Hughes, Shared Services Director for Audit, Fraud, Risk and 

Insurance 
 
Responsible Director: Director for Audit, Fraud, Risk and Insurance 
 

 
Summary 
 
The Council takes its responsibilities to protect the public purse very seriously and is 
committed to protecting the public funds that it administers. This report provides an 
account of fraud-related activity undertaken by the Corporate Anti-Fraud Service 
(CAFS) from 1 April 2020 to 30 September 2020.  
 
CAFS provides a complete, professional counter fraud and investigation service for 
fraud attempted or committed against the Council, and supports the Council’s 
commitment to preventing, detecting and deterring fraud and corruption.  
  
For the period 1 April 2020 to 30 September 2020, CAFS identified 45 positive 
outcomes, including 18 recovered tenancies. Fraud identified has a notational value 
of over £400,000. 
 
Recommendation 
 
For the Committee to note and comment on the report. 
 
Wards Affected: None 
 

 

H&F Values 

Please state how the subject of the report relates to our values – delete those values 
which are not appropriate. 
 

Our Values Summary of how this report aligns to the 
H&F Priorities  

Being ruthlessly financially 
efficient 

CAFS supports the Council in its statutory 
obligation under Section 151 of the Local 
Government Act 1972 to ensure the 
protection of public funds and to have an 
effective system of prevention and detection 
of fraud and corruption. Where financial loss 

Page 43

Agenda Item 7



 

has been identified as a result of fraud, we 
will always seek to recover this loss either 
through the civil or criminal process. 

Contact Officer(s): 

Name:  Andy Hyatt 
Position: Head of Fraud 
Telephone: 020 7361 2777 
Email:  andy.hyatt@lbhf.gov.uk 
 

Background Papers Used in Preparing This Report 

None 
 

 
INTRODUCTION 
 

1.1. This report provides an account of fraud-related activity undertaken by the Corporate 
Anti-Fraud Service (CAFS) from 1 April 2020 to 30 September 2020.   
 

1.2. CAFS remains a shared service providing the Council with a full, professional 
counter fraud and investigation service for fraud attempted or committed against the 
authority. 
 

1.3. All CAFS work is conducted within the appropriate legislation and through the 
powers and responsibilities as set out within the financial regulations section of the 
Council’s constitution. CAFS ensures the Council fulfils its statutory obligation under 
the Local Government Act 1972 to provide the protection of public funds and to have 
an effective system of prevention and detection of fraud and corruption. 

 
1.4. During the first six months of this financial year, 2020/2021, CAFS investigated 259 

cases, including 95 new referrals, and concluded 76 investigations. A conclusion 
could mean support of a successful prosecution, successful prevention that stops 
fraud, a detection that identifies fraud and stops it continuing, an action that deters 
fraud, or no further action where there is no case to answer.  

 
1.5. The table below shows this activity and details the fraud types that make up the 

closed cases and live cases as at the start of the second half of the financial year. 
 

Activity Cases Fraud types Closed Live  
Live cases as at 01/04/20 164 Tenancy & Housing cases 36 136 
New referrals received 95 Internal Staff  1 3 
Closed investigations 
(Positive outcome 45) 

76 High/Medium risk fraud 35 15 
Low-risk fraud  4 20 

Live cases as at 30/09/20 183 POCA 0 9 

 
1.6. For the period 1 April 2020 to 30 September 2020, CAFS identified 45 positive 

outcomes. The fraud identified has a notational value of over £400,000 and is 
detailed in the following table. 
 

Page 44



 

 

 
 
WHISTLEBLOWING 
 

2.1 The Council’s whistleblowing policy continues to be the primary support route for 
staff wishing to report a concern.   
 

2.2 Since April 2020 CAFS received just one new referral that is currently at the fact-
finding stage, while the one outstanding whistleblowing investigation from 2019/20 
reached a conclusion and this has now been closed.  
 

Allegation 
 

Outcome Case 
status 

2019/20 

i. Codes of conduct Investigation concluded – breaches of the 
codes of conduct proven. 
 

Closed 

ii. Codes of conduct and conflict 
of interest 
 

The fact-finding investigation remains ongoing. 
  

Ongoing 

 
 
 

 
Activity 

Half-year 2019/20 Half-year 2020/21 

Fraud 
proved  

 

Notional 
Values 
(£’s) 

Fraud 
proved 

 

Notional 
Values 
(£’s) 

Housing Fraud  
 

2 2,000 - - 

Right to Buy 
 

4 6,000 1 3,500 

Advisory Reports (pro-active) 
 

4 15,000 1 5,000 

Prevention subtotal 
 

10 23,000 2 8,500 

Tenancy Fraud (Council and 

Registered Providers) 
18 259,900 2 32,500 

Internal Staff  
 

3 11,500 8 28,000 

Discretionary Business Grant 
(COVID Support)  

N/A N/A 24 240,000 

High/Medium risk fraud (e.g. NNDR, 

Procurement, Blue Badge) 
5 5,000 2 63,500 

Low-risk fraud (e.g. Freedom passes, 

Council Tax SPD) 
5 3,379 6 4,186 

Detection subtotal 
 

31 279,779 42 368,186 

Fraud loss recoveries  
[incl. Proceeds of Crime] 

5 198,177 1 25,000 

Press releases and publicity 
 

- - - - 

Deterrence subtotal 
 

5 198,177 1 25,000 

 Total 
 

46 500,956 45 401,686 

Page 45



 

ANTI-FRAUD AND CORRUPTION STRATEGY 
 

3.1 The Council's Anti-Fraud & Corruption Strategy covering 2020/23 is based on five 
key themes: GOVERN, ACKNOWLEDGE, PREVENT, PURSUE and PROTECT. 
 

3.2 The Strategy is designed to heighten the Council's fraud resilience and demonstrate 
its protection and stewardship of public funds. It contains an action plan to provide 
management with a tool to ensure progress and transparency with regards to 
counter-fraud activities. 
 
 

i) GOVERN 
 
A robust framework of procedures and policies 
 

4.1 Minimising any losses to fraud and corruption is an essential part of ensuring that all 
of the Council’s resources are used for the purposes for which they are intended and 
ensuring we remain ruthlessly financially efficient. 
 

4.2 Staff are often the first to spot possible cases of wrongdoing at an early stage and 
are therefore encouraged and, indeed, expected to raise any concern that they may 
have, without fear of recrimination. Any concerns raised will be treated in the strictest 
confidence and will be appropriately investigated. 

 
4.3 It is therefore vitally important that anti-fraud policies are kept up to date to support 

and guide Council staff, ensuring compliance with laws and regulations, giving 
guidance for decision-making, and streamlining internal processes. 

 
4.4 The key anti-fraud policies are regularly reviewed, revised and presented to the Audit 

and Pension Committee for annual review and approval. 
 

ii) ACKNOWLEDGE 
 
Committing support and resource to tackle fraud 
 

4.5 A vital element of a counter-fraud strategy is the ability of an organisation to call 
upon competent, professionally trained officers to investigate suspected fraud. 
Through the resourcing and support for CAFS, the Council demonstrates it is 
committed to tackling fraud. 
 

4.6 Since April 2020 officers from CAFS have embraced personal development utilising 
the Council's Learning Zone to enhance their skills and their competencies. 

 
4.7 Officers have covered topics such as equality and diversity in the workplace, 

communicating effectively, business report writing, unconscious bias and general IT 
skills. Additionally, officers have also undertaken more specialised counter-fraud 
courses including data protection, anti-bribery, whistleblowing and employment 
investigations.   
 

Page 46



 

4.8 Collectively, CAFS officers have completed and passed learning assessments in 
over 100 courses.  
 

iii) PREVENT 
 

4.9 In addition to the specialist investigative role, CAFS continue to provide advice and 
support across the organisation, including the Council's partners and contractors.  
 

4.10 This type of advice and support is extremely important during emergency situations 
such as a pandemic, when the fraud threat is higher than at other times for some 
services. For example, the Business Rates Team and the Business and Enterprise 
Team processing Discretionary Business Grants. 
 
COVID-19 Counter Fraud Work 
 

4.11 Throughout, CAFS has been available to support services impacted by COVID-19, 
especially at the design stage of new policy and procedures linked to the distribution 
of funding, services or supplies. 
 

4.12 During the start of the lockdown, the Council needed to redeploy staff to assist with 
other areas of work. In some instances, this meant providing redeployed staff with 
access to confidential systems they would not usually use.  
 

4.13 The DWP Searchlight system was needed for officers redeployed to the Registrars 
Service, and CAFS advised that those redeployed would need to understand their 
responsibilities, including the strict rules they must adhere to when using Searchlight. 

 
4.14 To support this, CAFS redesigned a Confidentiality Agreement document to meet the 

specific legislative user requirements for redeployed officers to use Searchlight, and 
to provide management with the assurance that they understood their 
responsibilities. 
 

4.15 CAFS has also provided investigative support throughout the pandemic to check the 
eligibility of applications for the Local Authority Discretionary Grants Fund. The fund 
was aimed at supporting small and micro businesses who were not eligible for the 
Small Business Grant Fund or the Retail, Leisure and Hospitality Fund. 
 

4.16 Investigators worked closely with the Business and Enterprise Team to conducted 
preliminary checks where concerns were raised regarding applications, and to verify 
the details provided by the businesses applying. 

 
4.17 The Business and Enterprise Team referred 35 potentially irregular business grant 

applications. Following investigations, 24 were refused as ineligible and 11 returned 
for payment or for re-assessment following the information uncovered by CAFS 
enquiries. 

 
4.18 Some examples for refusing applications include; 

 

 False application – an application submitted from someone claiming to be the 
director of a local business. Checks revealed the person named had resigned 

Page 47



 

from the company in 2016, and now someone had used their name to try to 
submit a false grant application. 

 

 Business not having a significant drop in income - In one example, the CAFS 
investigation found the business accounts were not up to date or available to 
verify financial standings despite the application claiming a significant loss since 
lockdown. 

 

 Business exceeded the rateable value limit (£61,000 per annum) – one 
investigation revealed the monthly rent on the business premise was in excess 
£6,250 per month. 

 
4.19 Grants were capped at £25,000, although depending upon the business smaller 

grants could be administered. Therefore, for reporting, CAFS has valued a notional 
saving of £10,000 where their investigation identified the applicant as being 
ineligible. 
 
Corporate Investigations 
 

4.20 Corporate investigations cover a wide range of different counter-fraud activities 
including, but not limited to, financial investigations, complex third-party fraud 
investigations, contractor or employee fraud, or actions and activities that contribute 
towards a practical assurance framework. 
 

4.21 Since 1 April 2020 corporate investigation work has included: 
 

 

 DWP security division referred a case to CAFS for investigation when a member 
of staff made unauthorised access to DWP systems and checked their own 
records. 

 

 CAFS supported the finance department in securing the recovery of a significant 
pension overpayment. CAFS provided support, advice and initial engagement 
with the former employee prompting a repayment agreement. 

 

 A member of staff caught misusing a disabled parking blue badge to park her 
vehicle free of charge in Hammersmith. 

 

 An investigation into the misuse of a personal care budget, that also identified a 
significant overpayment. 

 

 An investigation commenced following an attempted Local Support Payment 
fraud. No loss was identified, but the matter was reported to the police due to 
possible identity fraud linked to a recent assault. 

 
 
Housing/Tenancy Fraud  
 

Page 48



 

4.22 CAFS provides an investigative service to all aspects of housing, including requests 
for the succession or assignment of tenancies, allegations of subletting or other 
forms of tenancy breaches as well as right to buys. 
 

4.23 Achievements in this service area have been disrupted by the pandemic, where 
changes to legislation, per the Coronavirus Act 2020, and social distancing 
restrictions have affected the number of fraud recoveries CAFS have been able to 
achieve.  
 

4.24 Between 1 April 2020 to 30 September, 2020 CAFS stopped a fraudulent succession 
application and recovered a three-bedroom property in Ancill Close, W6. During the 
same period, one right to buy application was stopped, although applications have 
significantly reduced since the start of the pandemic. 

 
iv) PURSUE 

 
4.25 Stopping fraud and corruption from happening in the first place must be our primary 

aim. However, those who keep on trying may still succeed. It is, therefore, essential 
that a robust enforcement response is available to pursue fraudsters and deter 
others. 
 

4.26 Since April 2020, CAFS was involved in two significant recoveries. 
 

 The first involved support for the finance department in securing the recovery 
of a large pension overpayment. CAFS provided help, advice and initial 
engagement with the former employee prompting a repayment agreement. 
 

 The second was the clawback of a wrongfully claimed small business grant of 
£25,000. The business had received the payment, but following the post-
checking process it transpired, they were not eligible to the payment. CAFS 
intervened, and the amount was recovered in full. 
 

v) PROTECT 
 

4.27 This aspect of the Strategy covers counter-fraud activity to protect public funds, 
protecting the Council from fraud and protecting itself from future scams. 
 

4.28 CAFS remains an active member of the National Anti-Fraud Network (NAFN). NAFN 
disseminate national fraud alerts which are circulated by CAFS to the appropriate 
departments. CAFS also offer support and advice to ensure proper action is taken in 
response to the warnings and to protect the Council from fraud. 

 
4.29 During the lockdown, there was a significant increase of alerts detailing fraudsters 

that were targeting NNDR accounts details using COVID as a ruse to harvest data 
and make a false grant application. The warnings included an ever-increasing list of 
fake email domains that were being used, and this valuable intelligence enabled IT 
to block several fraudulent email addresses before they could attempt to scam the 
Council.  

 
List of Appendices: 

Page 49



 

Appendix 1 – Counter-fraud activity including noteworthy cases. 
 
 
CONSULTATION 
 

5.1 The report has been subject to consultation with the Strategic Leadership Team. 
 
EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS 
 

6.1 There are no equality implications arising from this report. 
 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

7.1 The work of CAFS is governed by a range of legislation including: the Police and 
Criminal Evidence Act, the Criminal Procedures Investigation Act, the Regulation of 
Investigatory Powers Act, the Fraud Act, the Prevention of Social Housing Fraud Act 
and the Proceeds of Crime Act.   

 
FINANCIAL AND RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS 
 

8.1 Resources required to deliver on the Council’s counter fraud strategy come from the 
budget allocated to the Corporate Anti-fraud Service.  There are no additional 
resource implications arising from this report. Successful investigations and 
prosecutions can lead to the recovery of Council assets and money which are 
required to protect front line services. 
 
RISK MANAGEMENT  
 

9.1 The delivery of the counter fraud strategy and associated policies contributes to the 
management of fraud risks faced by the Council, with proactive exercises supporting 
managers to put effective counter fraud and corruption controls in place in their 
systems and processes. 
 

Page 50



 

APPENDIX 1 

Source Fraud Review Details Risk 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
Fraud 
Awareness  
 
 

 
 

 
Benefit Service – Fraud Awareness 
 
As CAFS build fraud resilience, it is essential that 
we continually refresh and promote the Council's 
suite of anti-fraud related policies and procedures, 
using training to enhance understanding and raise 
awareness. 
 
Strategic objective: Developing a more effective 
anti-fraud culture 

 

 
In response to an audit recommendation regarding fraud 
awareness, the Benefits Service undertook an online course 
which concluded with a knowledge assessment to evidence 
learning. The evaluation aims to measure how well a learner has 
understood the course content. Additionally, these assessments 
also help learners gauge their own knowledge and learning 
progress. 
 
The course was bespoke for the Benefits Service, having been 
designed and written by CAFS.  
 
Role based training helps employees better connect the 
messages of the training to their daily responsibilities. This type of 
anti-fraud training also helps staff identify suspicious activity and 
feel empowered to act against potential fraud. 
 
The course highlighted general fraud risks experienced by local 
authorities as well as the consequences of fraud on the Council 
and the wider community.  
 
It then focused on benefit fraud, the risks, the fraud types and 
fraud indicators so officers can remain vigilant in how to spot fraud 
and how to prevent fraud. The course also provided clear advice 
on what officers should do if they suspect fraud and how to refer 
their concerns. 
 
A total of 43 officers completed the course and learning 
assessment, scoring an average of 87% against a 70% pass 
mark. 
 

 
N/A 

 

 

 

P
age 51



 

 

 Case Description 

 
1. 
 
 
 

 

EMPLOYEE – The Department for Works and Pension (DWP) alerted the Council to a possible security incident in respect of 
unauthorised access to DWP data on the Searchlight system. It identified the user as an officer within the Housing Benefit Department. 
 
The information provided by the DWP included the audit trail and screenshots for the individual’s activity in the Searchlight system. This 
showed that they had accessed records for two different NINO's. One was the officer’s personal file and they had viewed the entire 
record.  
 
Under the Memorandum of Understanding between the Council and DWP, where a person deliberately accesses, attempts to access 
or browses DWP data without a legitimate business reason or appropriate authorisation the breach of security is considered extremely 
serious. Their access to Searchlight was removed, and they were suspended forthwith. 

 
The subsequent investigation found no evidence of any other wrongdoing, and following an investigative interview in June 2020, the 
findings were present to People and Talent to progress the matter in accordance with the Council’s Disciplinary Procedure. 
 
At the Disciplinary Hearing the officer admitted the allegations to the Chair of the Hearing and detailed her personal circumstances as 
mitigating factors. A Final Written Warning was issued on the grounds of misconduct, and the warning would remain on the personnel 
file for 36 months, and any further incidents of misconduct could lead to termination of employment.  However, following receipt of the 
Final Written Warning, the employee tendered their resignation which the Council duly accepted. 
 

 
2. 
 

 

EMPLOYEE - Officers observed a vehicle parked displaying a blue badge issued by the London Borough of Harrow. They also 
observed the car’s window was open and contacted the badge holder to come and secure the vehicle and to avoid the badge from 
being stolen. 
 
The badge holder stated that he was not present when the vehicle was parked and was in fact in Charing Cross Hospital. He stated it 
was his wife who had parked the vehicle.  
 
The wife attended the scene shortly after the call and admitted to parking the vehicle and displaying the badge to avoid parking 
charges. The badge holder was not present when the vehicle was parked. She confirmed that she was a Council employee working in 
The Clockwork building, which was very close to the location of the parked vehicle. 
 
A disciplinary hearing took place in June 2020 where the case against the employee was proven and she was dismissed. A criminal 

P
age 52



 

case remains outstanding due to COVID impacts upon court processing of case listings and schedules.  

 
3. 

 
SUCCESSION – The tenant of a three-bedroom property in Ancill Close died in 2019, and the Council received an application for 
succession from a family member. A previous succession occurred in 2003; therefore, the applicant was being considered for a 
discretionary award of a tenancy.  
 
Council records suggested that the tenant was recorded as living alone and there was no reference to anyone else living at the 
address. The matter was duly referred to CAFS. 
 
Notes on the housing file suggested the tenant had tried to apply for a mutual exchange with another family member, and this gave 
investigators a possible lead to identify where family members were living before the tenant’s death. 
 
The investigation found the applicant linked to addresses in Glenthorne Road and one in Willesden Junction. 
 
In January 2020 the applicant was interviewed under caution but denied the fact that they had never lived at the Ancill Close address. 
They said that they registered their financial details at the Glenthorne Road address because it was closer to the bank. However, from 
Ancill Road to Glenthorne Road, the applicant would pass the bank on the route. 
 
Shortly after the interview, the family of the deceased contacted the housing officer and agreed to return the keys to Ancill Close and 
vacate the property. However, the family delayed in returning the keys, submitting complaints to the local MP, which were unfound. 
 
In June 2020 they eventually returned the keys to the property, and the tenancy was ended. 
 
 
 

 
4. 

 

RIGHT TO BUY (RTB) – A RTB application for a property in Vereker Road, W14 was made referred to CAFS. The application was 
joint, in the names of a mother and daughter. However, Housing were concerned the daughter was not resident. 
 
CAFS checks linked to daughter to an address in Kent, and following contact with Maidstone Borough Council, they confirmed the 
daughter was liable for Council Tax at a property in their borough where she received a single person discount. 
 
In view of the above information the application was withdrawn. 
 
 

P
age 53



 

 

 
5. 

 
PERSONAL BUDGETS – CAFS received a referral via fraud hotline alleging that a resident in Aintree Estate was exaggerating their 
disability and misusing their direct payments. 
 
The initial enquiries by CAFS revealed many bank accounts held by the subject and also alternative names used by the subject. 
 
Following an initial visit to the client where a consensual agreement was signed, bank statements for the client's accounts were 
obtained. These showed a pattern of personal expenditure and confirmed that not all of the client's care budget was being used 
appropriately. 
 
The accounts showed cash withdrawals and regular payments made to many food outlets and food delivery companies. 
 
Over six years, it was clear that not all the care package had been spent on support. Following account analysis by the adult social 
care finance team, a significant overpayment was created that the client is now repaying in full. 
 
Criminal charges were considered, but the case failed the public interest test due to the client's age and vulnerabilities, in accordance 
with the Code for Crown Prosecutors. 
 

 

P
age 54



1 
 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

 
Report to:   Audit and Pensions Committee 
 
Date:  01/12/2020 
 
Subject: Risk Management 
 
Report of: Director of Audit, Risk, Fraud and Insurances  
 

 
Summary 
The purpose of this report is to provide members of the Audit and Pensions Committee with 
an update on risk management across the Council. 
 

 
Recommendation 
 

For the Committee to note and comment on the report. 
 
 
Wards Affected: None 

 
 

H&F Priorities 
 
Our Priorities Summary of how this report aligns to the 

H&F Priorities  
 Building shared prosperity Good risk management helps to: 

maintain and promote the Council’s 
reputation; 

 Creating a compassionate 
council 

is an enabling tool to help protect residents 
and staff including some of the most 
vulnerable in society; 

 Doing things with local 
residents, not to them 

place people, businesses and the wider 
community at the heart of everything we do; 

 Being ruthlessly financially 
efficient 

ensure robust financial and information 
management and supports internal control, 
opportunity and innovation; 

 Taking pride in H&F protect valuable assets and the built and 
natural environment. 

 
 

Financial challenge 

The current and future climate for local government represents a significant risk to the 
council with the ongoing challenge of delivering services with significantly reduced funding 
levels further impacted by the coronavirus pandemic. This has seen the council incur 
additional expenditure whilst at the same time seeing reductions in the level of resources 
available through a combination of lower income levels and inherent pressures that existed 
prior to Covid-19 which must also be managed. 

Page 55

Agenda Item 8



2 
 

 

Financial implications 

There are no specific financial implications arising from this report. Services are expected to 
manage their risks within current budgets. Where additional funds are required to mitigate or 
manage risks, separate decisions reports will be required for the approval of unbudgeted 
expenditure. 

 

A standing Corporate risk, Financial Management of in year budget and Medium-Term 
Planning, identifies the risks to balancing the budget in response to continued government 
funding and demand pressures faced by the Council and the sector more generally and is 
assessed as high risk. The in-year position is reported monthly in the Corporate Revenue 
Monitor to Cabinet. Other corporate risks also identify financial pressures arising from 
demand and complexity of service provision which need to be managed.  

 

Comments verified by Emily Hill, Director of Finance 

 

Legal implications 
 

There are no particular legal implications arising from this report. 

 

Comments drafted by Rhian Davies, Director of Resources 

 
 

Contact Officer: 
 
Name: Michael Sloniowski 
Position: Risk Manager 
Telephone: 020 8753 2587 
Email: Michael.sloniowski@lbhf.gov.uk 
 

 
Background Papers Used in Preparing This Report  
 
Risk Registers, reports to Children and Education Policy and Accountability Committee; 
Health Inclusion and Social Care Policy and Accountability Committee; Finance, 
Commercial Revenue and Contracts Policy and Accountability Committee. 
 
 

 
1. Background 

 
1.1. The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 states that the Council must ensure that 

it has a sound system of internal control which includes effective arrangements for 
the management of risk. It is paramount that all risks are clearly identified, 
managed and reported through the relevant channel. Risks can never be 
eliminated entirely but proportionate and targeted action can be taken to reduce 
risks to an acceptable level. Furthermore, the work of the Council’s Policy and 

Page 56



3 
 

Accountability Committees is acknowledged as a robust and additional form of 
assurance for the management of risk across its services. 

 

1.2. Effective governance and management of risks are particularly significant as 
funding for Local Government has diminished authorities’ objectives and are 
becoming increasingly fundamental and relate, for instance, to continuing to meet 
statutory service obligations. Arrangements must therefore be effective in a riskier, 
more time-pressured and less well-resourced context. This is particularly more 
important as the region, Greater London, has experienced a second wave of 
infections related to the Coronavirus outbreak and were subsequently moved to tier 
2, high, of the government’s new three tier coronavirus restrictions system effective 
on 17 October 2020. 

 
1.3. Local authorities are required to maintain a sound system of internal control, 

including risk management, internal audit, and whistleblowing arrangements. Risk 
management is the application of Council strategies, governance, policies and 
processes to identify and manage risks that are unacceptable to the Council. 
Managing risk processes effectively enables the Council to safeguard against 
potential threats and exploit potential opportunities to improve services and provide 
better value for money for residents, visitors, local businesses and service users. 

 

1.4. As part of its Governance the Council’s approach to risk management requires 
Directors, managers and staff, through their departmental Senior Management 
Teams, to: 

 identify risks; 

 assess the risk; 

 agree and take action to manage the risk; and, 

 monitor, review and escalate risks. 

 

1.5. The Council have risk management arrangements in place which feed into the risk 
register accompany the report, Appendix 1. This register houses the most significant 
cross-cutting risks that could impact on the outcomes that are set out in the 
Council’s Priorities. These risks can be internal or external facing. Internal risks 
relate to the organisation itself and cover areas such as programmes, workforce, 
business continuity, safety or technology. External risks are those that can affect the 
local area, its people, communities, businesses and infrastructure where the Council 
often has a role, in partnership, to mitigate them. We have amended the standing 
corporate risks previously presented to the Committee to include the Coronavirus. 

 

1.6. The risk management arrangements take into consideration the National Risk 
Assessment (NRA), published by the Cabinet Office. The NRA captures the 
changing risk landscape affecting the UK and is also used to inform the more local 
London Risk Register. The guidance and template for Committee and Strategic 
Leadership Team reports for decision making require authors to detail the risk 
management aspects as part of report considerations. Report authors have the 
opportunity to review and reflect on risk information and the links to relevant 
corporate standing risks. 

Page 57



4 
 

 

1.7. This report provides the Committee with an updated post Covid-19 outbreak risk 
register presenting a suite of risks as reviewed by the Council’s Strategic Leadership 
Team. A number of these have recently risen as a direct result of Covid-19, 
including the impact on the council’s 2020/21 budget and economic outlook for the 
area. Many of the risks shown in Appendix 1 will come and go as the environment 
changes. However there remain a set of ‘standing’ corporate risks that are always 
likely to face the council: 

 Safeguarding children   Council Resilience 

 Safeguarding adults  Financial Management (in-year 
and the medium term) 

 Health and Safety  Information management 

 Community Resilience  Climate change adaptation / 
mitigation 

 Major Cyber Incident 

 Coronavirus  

 

 

Risk management 2020/21 

1.8. Since March 2020, a significant amount of risk management focus has been the 
ongoing work related to the Coronavirus pandemic. Council services have, and will 
continue to be, impacted by the pandemic and this places additional focus on risk 
management arrangements to ensure that new evolving risks are identified and 
treated. The impact of the Coronavirus on the council’s corporate risks has seen 
risks rise sharply and, in some cases, considerably for example risks associated 
with the economy. To ensure that these are captured the risk register seeks to 
incorporate those together with their mitigations whilst always observing and 
considering input from key service areas. With the signing of the Withdrawal 
Agreement by the UK Government, the immediacy of the UK leaving the EU without 
a deal receded. This risk rose sharply in October as the prospect of a trade deal with 
the EU became less likely. The council continues to monitor the progress of 
negotiations between HM Government and the EU and any risks or opportunities 
arising from this.  

 

Risk appetite 

1.9. The Council remains accountable to the public for its performance and financial 
management. This means that the Council naturally has a low appetite for risk, 
however as the Covid-19 outbreak continues through a second and potentially 
successive waves the Council will need to take carefully considered risks to develop 
new and innovative ways to continue to deliver services, support and ensure the 
long-term wellbeing of communities is not impaired by decisions made in the short 
term. This makes good risk management essential.  

 

Post Covid-19 Outbreak risk register 

1.10. This report provides assurance on the council’s corporate risk management 
arrangements, explaining the internal control arrangements in place at a strategic 
level. It provides one of the sources of assurance the Committee can consider when 
approving the Annual Governance Statement. It also enables the Committee to fulfil 

Page 58



5 
 

its roles under the Committee’s Terms of Reference to review the adequacy of 
council’s Corporate Governance arrangements, including matters such as internal 
control and risk management.  

 

1.11. Appendix 1 provides assurance on how each of the risks are managed signposting 
to where further initiatives or information can be found. It also provides assurance on 
risks currently marked as ‘red’ – i.e. of the highest significance.  

 
1.12. Appendix 2 provides a chronology of key HM Government measures implemented. 

 

Risk Overview 

1.13. The coronavirus (Covid-19) is a threat to life, health, wellbeing and the economy. In 
the area this has resulted to significant disruption to the lives of residents, 
businesses and infrastructure and to council services, with the consequences 
greater for those more vulnerable or disadvantaged. Whilst many aspects of the risk 
have materialised, there are still numerous uncertainties and at this stage it is hard 
to predict the full scale, or timing, of impacts of Covid-19. 

 

1.14. Since the last update to the Committee rates of transmission nationally have 
continued to rise. Since 18 September, premises and venues across England are 
required by law to have a system in place to record contact details of their 
customers, visitors and staff. On 20 September a new £500 isolation support 
scheme was announced for people on low incomes who face loss of income due to 
testing positive or being asked to self-isolate by NHS Test and Trace. 

 
1.15. In response to rising cases of Covid-19 across the country, on 21 September the UK 

Chief Medical Officers and Joint Biosecurity Centre recommended that the UK Covid 
level moves from level 3 (Covid-19 is in general circulation) to level 4, (Covid-19 is in 
general circulation, transmission is high or rising exponentially). 

 
1.16. On 22 September the Prime Minister announced national measures, including 

advising people who can work from home to do so. Additionally, a pause on planned 
re-opening of conferences, sporting events and exhibitions from 01 October. Other 
measures introduced from 23 September were the mandatory wearing of face 
coverings for taxi and private hire customers, within hospitality venues except when 
seated; for retail staff, with fixed penalties enforceable by the police. 

 
1.17. Hospitality venues are legally required, from 24 September, to display the NHS QR 

code and ensure that no individual group larger than six enters the premises and 
close at 10.00 pm. Licensed services can only offer a table service and businesses 
that fail in these duties may be fined £1000, rising to £10,000 for repeat offences. 

 

Key Controls in place to manage the risk 

1.18. On the 24 September the NHS Covid-19 app launched. The Chancellor unveiled the 
Winter Economy Plan that included a Job Support Scheme replacing the furlough 
scheme from 1 November and an extension to the Self-Employed Income Support 
Scheme. 

Page 59



6 
 

 

1.19. The council is responding well to an unprecedented global crisis within the 
resources and information available. Its strengths include working with a broad set of 
partners, the community and volunteers to mitigate the effects of the outbreak and 
then to recover. Social distancing, testing, tracing and managing outbreaks and 
community transmission are essential components in the response to the virus. 
Effective communications are central in the period ahead to encourage everybody to 
take the required steps to help themselves and keep others safe whilst Covid-19 
remains in circulation. 

 
1.20. Key controls in place also include: 

 

 From 28 September, a new legal duty to self-isolate came into force for people 
who test positive or come into contact with someone who has tested positive for 
Covid-19. Fines of £1,000 enforceable by the police for breaches, increasing to 
£10,000 for repeat offences. 

 Input from the Director of Public Health, Covid Director and Services on the 
areas of Infection control and prevention, communications, business continuity 
plans, Outbreak plans, local Outbreak Control management and locally 
controlled test and tracing arrangements. 

 Ongoing work of the Council’s Environmental Health Officers and their support to 
help local businesses be Covid safe. 

 Interpreting and responding to changes in regulations and guidance issued by 
HM Government at pace. 

 Reinforcing clear communications as a priority across services and to the 
community to ensure that people understand restrictions introduced by HM 
Government. Working to make these messages as simple as possible so that 
people understand the importance of keeping distance from others, wearing a 
face covering, washing hands, accessing testing and self-isolating in order to 
reduce the spread of the virus. 

 Establishing a single Covic-19 Board structure for Covid-19 related management 
of ongoing Issues, Outbreaks and Recovery. 

 Responding to the impacts of Covid-19, the challenges ahead and use of data. 

 The Council’s Strategic Leadership Team have received regular reports setting 
out details of the Council’s preparations and ongoing actions to respond to the 
Coronavirus Pandemic and the second wave response but also the Recovery. 

 Maintaining communications with the workforce through h&f engage, e-mail, 
twitter and through cascading messages. 

 In addition, the Strategic Leadership Team has received reports detailing the 
impact of Covid-19 on the Council’s revenue budget. The financial management 
arrangement will continue to be kept under review during the year. 

 Liaising with other London Councils on key issues and to share best practice 
including, as a social services director group in NWL, the council lobbied 
successfully for the development of ‘hot hubs’ across West London – transitional 
beds for quarantine purposes in a care setting. 

 The council’s ability to quickly assemble officers to deal with a major disruption 
event alongside partner organisations continues to demonstrate resilience. 

Page 60



7 
 

 Co-operation and co-ordination across services on Health and Safety issues. 
Over the coming months actions will be focussed on how the council recovers 
from the pandemic whilst maintaining health and safety and wellbeing standards 
and adapting to sudden and significant changes.  

 Updating Person and Place risk assessments, Ways of Working guidance and 
on-line support to the workforce for example Well-being Wednesday sessions. 

 

1.21. The current and future financial climate for local government represents a significant 
risk to the Council’s priorities and ambitions. The impact of Covid-19 on the 
economy will be felt by businesses and residents resulting in an increase in demand 
of services and significant reductions in income realised by the Council. Whilst every 
possible effort is being made to protect front line services the position remains 
challenging and may not be sustainable. 

 

Further actions 

1.22. Detailed information on the actions of the council continues to be provided to the 
council’s Policy and Accountability Committees.  

 

Conclusions 

1.23. Local authorities face significant pressures over the coming months as increased 
rates of transmission of Covid-19 combine with financial pressure and the other 
concurrent pressures as we enter Winter and approach the end of the EU exit 
transition period. Council Officers and services continue to with all partners to rapidly 
respond to changing circumstances, interpreting and implementing new guidance 
and regulations. 

 
List of Appendices: 
Appendix 1 - List of Post Covid-19 risks.  

1. Ongoing response; 

2. Restart; 

3. Recovery and Opportunity; 

4. Contact Tracing (now incorporated into Business as Usual);  

5. Corporate Continuity & Community and; 

6. Corporate Health and Safety. 

 

Appendix 2 - List of national policy developments. 

Page 61



Appendix 1 

8 
 

COUNCIL RISK REGISTER – POST COVID  

1. ONGOING 
RESPONSE Risk Description Inherent Risk  

  
Residual Risk   

Date 
reviewed 

Risk Status 
Open/Closed 

Ref 
No. Class There is a risk of..' Likelihood Impact Score Existing Controls Risk Owner Likelihood Impact Score 

Planned 
Controls     

13 Social management of further 
widespread infection across 
the community. 

5 5 25 Twitter and Facebook campaigns, #Stayhomesavelives; Banners and posters across the borough, Social distancing, keep a car 
length away.; Closure of;  Area Housing Offices, 145 King Street Customer Service Centre and the Registry Offices, Parks and 
Adult Learning Centres, Leisure centres, The Lyric Theatre, Libraries; Eviction warrants suspended; Cancellation or 
postponement of events e.g. The Boat Race, Polo in the Park.; Re-opening Parks on a trial basis for exercising following new 
police powers and the Council's publicity posters campaign. Reopening in a Covid safe way is being managed through the 
council's Recovery Board. Housing caretakers will be focusing on high use areas, using disinfectant to clean key touchpoints, 
such as door handles and push plates, lift buttons, intercoms, handrails, bannisters, chute areas, bulk points, regularly 
throughout the day. Sheltered Housing - increasing our presence and frequency of cleaning in the communal internal areas.; 
Review and pause of capital works where they are intrusive. 
Contact the Customer Service Centre on  0800 023 4499 or via email rather than coming into council offices.; Safe distancing for 
operatives and contractors, verification re: self-isolation. Megaphones used for messaging in Parks and Open spaces. 
22 April 2020 Pavements in the busy shopping areas of King Street and Uxbridge Road temporarily widened and marked to help 
with social distancing enabling pedestrians to queue safely for essential supplies from food stores and pharmacies and to pass 
each other to maintain social distancing. Wardens allocated to both locations will monitor compliance. The Council and the 
Metropolitan Police restricted the use of the Thames Path for cyclists and joggers between 10.00 am and 6.00 pm from Chiswick 
Mall to Putney Bridge. A queueing system, backed by marshals, is also enforcing social distancing at Hammersmith Bridge 
(since closed from 13 August 2020). 
01 May 2020 Keeping the popular North End Road Market open by providing stewards to support social distancing. The Council 
has also delivered PPE and handwashing facilities to the traders, so this important and healthy source of cheap food remains 
available to residents. 
06 June 2020 h&f TV messaging. You protect me. Face masks messaging. ; 11 June 2020 TfL implementation of free face 
coverings for public transport users. 
04 August 2020 New Council powers to prevent wider infection from HM Government; Outbreak Plans with Public Health; Health 
and Wellbeing Board; Communications, Working with Businesses, Enforcement and Support; Data interpretation and sharing of 
trends/patterns of infections in the local area at Test and Trace Project Team; 04 August 2020 Waiver required to direct award 
local testing for H&F at H&F GP's; 07 September 2020 Covid-19 multi-language information video by h&f staff; 
11 September 2020 Covid-safe pool ready swimming lessons introduced at the Phoenix Fitness Centre and Janet Adegoke 
swimming pool. The Council also introduced a phased re-launch of the Better Swim School. 
18 September 2020 Outbreak plan and planning for differing settings, walkthroughs of Outbreak Plans with key Officers. Incident 
Management Teams led by Director of Public Health and setting up of Local Test and Trace service. Additional Environmental 
Health Officers appointed and have commenced work to aid compliance. 
21 September 2020 h&f CAN to receive queries from the public concerning non-compliance and triage them before despatch to 
Officers. Other measures include the reporting to the Met. Police own non-compliance reporting site. 
22 September 2020 sKIDS Public Health England Survey - PHE recruited 138 schools across England, including 89 schools that 
are participating in the weekly swab study and 47 schools having swabs and blood tests done at the beginning and at the end of 
the summer term. 
24 September 2020 NHS COVID-19 app launch for business and local venues.  NHS QR poster. This will make it easier for 
customers to safely check-in to a business and be alerted in the event of a COVID-19 outbreak. 
20 September 2020 Director of Public Health letter to parents and carers - what to do if your child is unwell. 18/23/24 September 
Social media - NHS Covid-19 App, keep h&f safe and stop a 2nd miserable lockdown, QR code logging in a venue. 22 
September 2020 New national restrictions announced by HM Government. 
25 September 2020 Returning to school safely - Director of Public Health message regarding schools, updates concerning rising 
infection rates, published on the h&f website with videos, school staff zone and school’s newsletter. Schools have had to 
complete thorough risk assessments and are following the latest advice and guidance from Government and Public Health 
England. h&f Council campaign in support of downloading the NHS Covid-19 App. Social media feed re: Covid positive cases in 
h&f, London and England 
28 September 2020 New legal duty to self-isolate came into force following a positive test result or are contacted by NHS Test 
and Trace.  
30 September 2020 Resilience Group meeting - Olympia testing unit opening, discussions are taking place with DHSC regarding 
facilities at Westfield Shopping centre. Environmental Health Officers are visiting supermarkets to check compliance with face 
coverings for staff. 
07 October 2020 Successful implementation of local test and trace and handover to the business. 15 October 2020 
Announcement that Greater London Councils are to be placed in tier 2 from 17 October 2020 along with the new restrictions that 
accompany that. 

Covid-19 
Board; 
Strategic 
Leadership 
Team 
Director of 
Public 
Health 
Director of 
Covid-19 

3 4 12 Keep risk under 
review 

15/10/2020 Open 

18 Economic/ 
Financial 

impact on the local economy 
and businesses 

5 5 25 Intranet Coronavirus (COVID-19): advice and support for local businesses; Business connects e-newsletter, FAQ's; Listing of 
businesses required to close by HM Government ; Link to HM Government guidance for help to employers and businesses; 
Guidance note on furloughed workers; All retail, hospitality and leisure businesses in England qualify for the business rates 
holiday for the 2020 to 2021 tax year.; The Small Business Grant Fund (SBGF) HM Government; The Retail, Hospitality and 
Leisure Grant (RHLG) HM Government details of both grants applications to Businessrates@lbhf.gov.uk; Coronavirus Business 
Interruption Loan Scheme is being delivered by the British Business Bank; HMRC Tax advice help line for VAT queries; Self-
employed Income Tax deferral, HMRC Self-Employment Income Support Scheme taxable grant of up to £7,500 07 May 2020; 
HM Government’s COVID-19 Corporate Financing Facility; Business resilience advice contact; h&f Business Helpdesk e-mail 
and phone contact; Moved to digital sessions for business 1-2-1 advice clinics, booking via Eventbrite; Additional support links - 
Facebook small business grants programme, free crowdfunding support, Met. Police guidance for business, business support 
guidance from the Mayor of London; h&f Council received £49m from HM Government to make grants to local businesses in 
payments of either £10,000 or £25,000. The Council has installed new software to smooth the payment of grant funding for h&f 
businesses. The applications are being handled through the business rates team who worked through the Easter Break handling 
over 200 calls and emails a day. The installation of the software has caused some issues with the regular DD run. Rate relief - 
nearly 3,000 local business ratepayers have been contacted to say they will not pay business rates this year - totalling £118m in 
rate relief awards from h&f Council.  A LSP (Local Supports Payment Scheme)  has been expanded for residents who have lost 
their jobs, had income reduced or waiting for benefits payments to come through.; Details communicated, through Twitter, of the 
Imperial college Innovators Programme including encouraging applications from LBHF residents 
01 May 2020 the Council has delivered more than £31m of grants to local businesses. Businesses encouraged to send in their 
details to businessrates@lbhf.gov.uk.; 12 May 2020 HM Government announce the Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme will 

Strategic 
Director for 
the 
Economy, 
Director of 
Finance 

3 3 9 Keep risk under 
review 

15/10/2020 Open 

P
age 62



Appendix 1 

9 
 

COUNCIL RISK REGISTER – POST COVID  

1. ONGOING 
RESPONSE Risk Description Inherent Risk  

  
Residual Risk   

Date 
reviewed 

Risk Status 
Open/Closed 

Ref 
No. Class There is a risk of..' Likelihood Impact Score Existing Controls Risk Owner Likelihood Impact Score 

Planned 
Controls     

extend to October 2020. 
19 May 2020 H&F Brilliant 4 Biz launching an improving business website presence Webinar; 21 May 2020 HM Government - 
Future Fund for start-ups launched £500m emergency support package; 22 May 2020 the Council has delivered more than £40m 
of grants to local businesses. Business grants are one of the ways the Council is doing to provide vital support in these difficult 
times; 27 May 2020 HM Government - The Coronavirus Statutory Sick Pay Rebate Scheme; 31 July 2020 Shop Local Shop Safe 
campaign to kick start the Local Economy and lead the way with new safety measures  to avoid a second lockdown. 02 
September 2020 h&f Circles and LBHF Shop Local Shop Safe Video.; 09 September 2020 The Economy, Housing and the Arts 
Policy and Accountability Committee report on Upstream. Upstream supports the arrival of key anchor companies and helps 
galvanise and build relationships with the science, tech and creative businesses whose engagement is critical to the delivery of 
the Industrial Strategy. Upstream has engaged business in the Borough in a way not done before. 
With the outbreak of COVID-19, Upstream moved its events and assistance online. Instituted e-coffees for businesses to sign up 
to and actively reached out to businesses. This resulted in a good understanding of the problems different businesses were 
facing and where possible, signposted and connected them to help available. In addition to highlighting the offers (space, 
products, events) from local businesses through our communication channels, here are some other ways Upstream has made a 
difference during COVID-19: a) Connecting an Imperial AI start-up to LBHF, who assisted with identifying vulnerable local 
residents who then received a range of support including food parcels b) Connecting YOOX-NET-A-PORTER to LBHF who in 
turn drew upon the digital expertise of the company’s staff to create a website (H&F Circles) for a community group c) Pivoting 
our events programme to suit the needs of businesses. The ‘Recalibrate’ series featured experts who advised our audience how 
to build relationships online in order to achieve sales; to present and pitch virtually; to improve their PR presence and a coaching 
session on finding purpose. d) convening the White City EVP group to discuss return to work and good practices around the 
challenge. Within the Upstream team, SP helped design the process for the dispensation discretionary grants and worked as an 
assessor alongside LBHF colleagues. PG set up and runs Patch, a volunteer mentor matching service that operates under 
LBHF’s auspices. 07 October 2020. Self-employment scheme extension.  The extension will provide two grants and will last for 
six months, from November 2020 to April 2021. Grants will be paid in two lump sum instalments each covering a three-month 
period. 02 September 2020 Kickstart scheme - DWP The Kickstart Scheme provides funding to employers to create job 
placements for 16 to 24 year olds on Universal Credit - Kickstart Gateway link to Workzone. 
09 October 2020 HM Government announce an extension to the Job Support Scheme commencing 01 November 2020 - grants 
to be paid up to £2,100 per employee for business unable to operate due to new second wave restrictions - businesses to 
receive grants up to £3,000 per month that are formal or legally asked to close. 12 October 2020 HM Government announce 
£257m package to 1,300 arts and cultural organisations nationally. 

25 Social impact on security of council 
tenants, private renters and 
homeowners. 

5 5 25 Council tenants 
Advice, support and guidance if Council tenants are having difficulty in paying the rent due to the coronavirus. 
Contact the rental income team on 020 8753 6032 or email rentincome@lbhf.gov.uk 
The Council phone line is open 9am to 5pm, Monday to Friday. 
This may include setting up a payment plan, or supporting residents to make a claim for benefits. The government has extended 
statutory sick pay for people affected by the coronavirus. 
For Universal Credit or Employment Support Allowance, the Council can provide advice on this. 
HM Government advice about claiming benefits as a result of coronavirus  
Private renters 
The Council are urging all landlords not to evict a tenant who can’t pay the rent as a result of the coronavirus. However, if private 
renters are struggling to pay rent they can apply for Universal Credit. If they are already receiving Universal Credit or housing 
benefit, they can apply for a Discretionary Housing Payment. From 29 August 2020 landlords are not able to start possession 
proceedings in most circumstances unless they have given tenants six months’ notice unless where the landlord wants to evict 
the tenant because of rent arrears of six months or more, anti-social behaviour, domestic abuse or false statement. 
Ministers have extended the ban on landlords evicting tenants in England until 20 September 2020.  
Homeowners 
If a homeowner, call the mortgage provider to explain a change in circumstances because they will be able to pause mortgage 
payments for up to three months. 

Assistant 
Director of 
Residents 
Services, 
Strategic 
Director for 
the 
Economy 

5 3 15 Keep risk under 
review 
Risks to Private 
renters 
increased as 
deadline of the 
ban on 
evictions has 
expired. 

21/09/2020 Open 

30 Health and 
Safety 

maintaining regulatory gas 
inspections during a period 
where residents are self-
isolating or not responding to 
appointments 

5 5 25 Ongoing review by the Economy Department 
Regular reporting to Director responsible for COVID-19 and Cabinet Member for Housing fortnightly. 
Department are risk assessing the situation and following advice from HM Government and the Regulator (The department have 
details of boiler make, age, occupancy type, CO detector, etc for all 11,153 appliances) 
16 April 2020 SLT briefing on position 
13 May 2020 SLT briefing on position 
10 June 2020 SLT briefing on position 
24 June 2020 SLT briefing on position 
08 July 2020 SLT briefing on position 
22 July 2020 SLT briefing on position 
06 August 2020 SLT briefing on position 
18 September 2020 SLT briefing on position - Recent increase in COVID 19 cases has led to increase in residents refusing entry 
due to self-isolating. Numbers being managed and low. 
30 September 2020 briefing on the position and notification of change of contractors for the asbestos survey contractors in 
Housing. 
14 October 2020 briefing on the position and increases in COVID 19 cases has led to increase in residents refusing entry due to 
self-isolating. Numbers being managed and low. Key capital works update provided. 

Strategic 
Director for 
the 
Economy 
Department 

3 3 9 Keep risk under 
review 

15/10/2020 Open 

32 Competitive risk to the Council that there is 
a supplier failure in an existing 
contract or to one recently 
awarded due to financing/cash 
flow or other liquidity 
pressures 

5 5 25 Ongoing review of the supply chain,  
10 June 2020 new enhanced Covid-19 sensitivity report requested from the Credit agency who report an upsurge in companies 
paying invoices late. 
HM Government Furlough scheme. 
Reviews on a case by case basis with reports to SLT. 
Reviews of the qualification criteria (threshold) for smaller companies (entities) for contracts 
Reviews of business continuity plans. 14 October 2020 - All business continuity plans to be reviewed periodically, every two 
months, in response to the second Covid wave/ No trade deal agreement with the EU/ Potential of a Cyber Attack. 

Head of 
Procurement 
and 
Contracts 

4 3 12 Keep risk under 
review 

15/10/2020 Open 

37 Social prevention of social unrest and 5 5 25 The local area's existing and continuing strong sense of community and inclusion. Assistant 3 4 12 Keep risk under 08/10/2020 Open 

P
age 63



Appendix 1 

10 
 

COUNCIL RISK REGISTER – POST COVID  

1. ONGOING 
RESPONSE Risk Description Inherent Risk  

  
Residual Risk   

Date 
reviewed 

Risk Status 
Open/Closed 

Ref 
No. Class There is a risk of..' Likelihood Impact Score Existing Controls Risk Owner Likelihood Impact Score 

Planned 
Controls     

crime and disorder. Involving the Community in h&f CAN 
'Borough Resilience Forum 
Draft response plan for crime and disorder. 
Multi-agency intelligence, information and resources. 
Solidarity messages to support Key Workers, e.g. Fulham Road, Hammersmith Primary School, Brackenbury Primary School, 
Shepherd Bush Families Project, St. Mary's Catholic Primary School 
Additional resources for the monitoring and compliance of social distancing measures in Parks and Open spaces including 
potential re-deployment. 
Additional planning document developing within the remit of the Recovery Planning Group 
12 May 2020 Workstream lead appointed - Head of Community Safety is working on a revised response plan. 
24 June 2020 Issue raised as HM Government lifted lockdown restrictions further for re-opening of pubs and restaurants and 
hospitality on 04 July 2020 which co-indices with a local premiership football game 
15 July 2020 Outbreak plans for unlicensed music events tested by walkthrough - Test and Trace Project Team  
29 July 2020 Contracts Assurance Board Implemented the Waiver to enable enhanced security on Housing Estates 
14 August 2020 HM Government announce £10k fines for organisers of unlicensed music events 
22 September 2020 Report to Children and Education Policy and Accountability Committee - Formation of the Gangs, Violence 
and Exploitation Unit. This approach includes the involvement of those within Children’s Services, Housing, the Voluntary Sector 
and employment to provide a better future for our young people. Six outcomes outlined; Participation; Community Support; 
Prevention; Early intervention; Protection; Community Resilience with Key Performance Indicators and Measures for monitoring. 

Director 
Safer 
Neighbourho
ods 

review 

44 Economic/ 
Financial 

COVID financing during the 
ongoing crisis and then 
recovery 

5 5 25 On 19 March 2020, HM government announced additional funding for local government to help respond to coronavirus (COVID-
19) pressures across all the services delivered. 
The allocations document 30 March 2020 set out the funding available for LBHF. (Please refer to Corp. Finance) 
This funding will not be ringfenced and can be allocated to Covid-19 pressures in whatever way individual authorities feel is 
appropriate to their pressures. 
07 April 20, AD Finance requested that all departments continue to work with and inform their Finance Reps of expenditure to 
support the claim. 
18 April 20 MHCLG announced £1.6b additional funding for Local Government increasing the total available to Local 
Government to £3.2b., £1.6b additional funding was made available in March 2020, the funding allocations have now been 
announced - Silver 29 April 2020 
Monitoring of position by Central Finance Team and Finance Board. 
12 May 2020 HM Government return being completed with services input and Finance leads, due 15 May 2020 
12 June 2020 Funding discussion at Finance Board (Operational), new funding report to be prepared for Finance Public 
Accountability Committee 
23 July 2020 Report on Financial consequences of Covid-19 presented to Finance, Commercial Revenue and Contracts Policy 
and Accountability Committee. 
24 September 2020 - Finance Board Chaired by Director of Finance, Grant returns to HM Government are processed by the 
Corporate Finance Team with input from Services. Latest deadlines discussed. 
05 October 2020 A follow-up report was prepared for and discussed at Finance, Commercial Revenue and Contracts Policy and 
Accountability Committee. - Key messages; If the government does not fully fund the Covid-19 pandemic it will pose a significant 
financial risk.; A net adverse impact of £18.3 million is currently forecast based on best estimate of costs, revenue losses and 
government funding. Position reported on the return to MHCLG in August 2020. Details of new Covid-19 spending pressures, 
impact on income and grants are provided in the report. 

Director of 
Finance 

4 4 16 Keep risk under 
review 

15/10/2020 Open 

48 Social maintaining (non-financial) 
support for families and the 
community during the crisis 

5 5 25 Family Support Services additional digital offer, including; 
a time to connect helpline; 
home learning guides for early years, primary school and secondary school children; 
the virtual family centre -l access all the support usually provided at the children’s centres through the new virtual Facebook 
sessions. Families can drop in for advice, take part in a session or request a call from their Time to Connect Team. 
Access to healthy food - the Rose Voucher Scheme. 
Communications from Healthy Hearts and the important time to stop smoking. 
Additional messaging from a Public Health perspective including, alcohol abuse, healthy eating and more domestic violence 
preventative guidance. 
18 May 2020 - Video message - Safe Families - Family Support how to connect with services. 
13 August 2020 proposal to restore services for Askham Road Centre reviewed at Recovery Board. 
22 September 2020 h&f and Clinical Commissioning Group joint report to Children and Education Policy and Accountability 
Committee - Supporting young people’s emotional wellbeing in Hammersmith & Fulham - during lockdown and beyond.  
30 September 2020 As one of the first Council's to set up its own Local Contact Tracing service it also enquires about Welfare 
needs during contact calls to individuals. 

Chief 
Executive 
Family 
Services 

3 3 9 Keep risk under 
review 

08/10/2020 Open 

51 Health and 
Safety 

emerging requirements for 
residents in Care Homes and 
any potential exposure to 
COVID. 

5 5 25 Needs and assessment. 
PHE expertise and advice. 
Whole Council approach 
Workforce monitoring 
Messaging 
PPE - over £2 million spent providing domiciliary care workers and care home staff with ample PPE and training, 
Key Workers and NHS Workers 
LBHF led on the development of Hot Hubs across West London - transitional beds for quarantine purposes. 
Daily provider calls - Home Care 
Working collaboratively with Imperial college medics and primary health clinicians 
Testing regimes 
Additional infection control funding announcement by HM Government of which the allocation to the Council is £688k. 
19 May 2020 Strategic Director of Social Services and Director of Finance report on budget and allocations. 
Outbreak Plans and ongoing response from the Director of Public Health and PHE. 
30 June 2020 Public Health update on the response to Covid 19 to Health, Inclusion and Social Care Policy and Accountability 
Committee by the Director of Public Health 
30 June 2020 A summary of Adult Social Care's response to Covid 19 by the Strategic Director of Social Care 

Strategic 
Director 
Social Care 

3 4 12 Keep risk under 
review 

25/08/2020 Open 

P
age 64



Appendix 1 

11 
 

COUNCIL RISK REGISTER – POST COVID  

1. ONGOING 
RESPONSE Risk Description Inherent Risk  

  
Residual Risk   

Date 
reviewed 

Risk Status 
Open/Closed 

Ref 
No. Class There is a risk of..' Likelihood Impact Score Existing Controls Risk Owner Likelihood Impact Score 

Planned 
Controls     

12 October 2020 Anti-body testing at home for all Adult Social Care Staff. A voluntary free COVID-19 antibody test is being made 
available regardless of whether symptoms are shown or not. Testing is free for all paid social care staff, including those working 
in care homes and personal assistants. Information will be shared on how to get tested with third sector partners and paid carers 
on the H&F website, via our commissioners, and through social work teams.  

55 Partnership there is a risk that suppliers 
are affected by either 
significant demands in the 
service or drops due to social 
isolation and they may 
struggle as a result. 

4 3 12 Ongoing management assessment. 
Contract Management. 
Horizon scanning. 
Recovery planning group. 
08 April funding package announced by HM Government to support the work of charities during the coronavirus outbreak 
including £370m for small and medium sized charities including a National Lottery Community Fund for England supporting 
organisations delivering food, essential medicines and providing financial advice. £360m to be directly allocated by government 
departments to charities providing key services and supporting vulnerable people during the crisis, including victims charities to 
help with potential increase in demand, vulnerable children charities so they can deliver services for local authorities and Citizens 
Advice to increase staffing numbers during the crisis. 
13 May 2020 - Coronavirus grants awarded by the Council and local charity UNITED in Hammersmith & Fulham. 63 groups have 
benefitted from the grants scheme to help them respond to urgent need on the front line as they work to support the most 
vulnerable and hard to reach residents. 
10 June 2020 - further discussion at the Horizon Scanning Group 
Ongoing review by ChS and ASC Commissioning Staff. 

Strategic 
Leadership 
Team 

4 3 12 Keep risk under 
review 

25/08/2020 Open 

56 Legislative/ 
Regulatory 

there is a risk that 
statutory/regulatory 
inspections e.g. Ofsted, CQC 
will not be carried out or 
completed. 

4 3 12 Routine Care Quality Commission inspections will be temporarily suspended for the duration of the COVID-19 outbreak - 
MHCLG 
Ofsted will look very favourably on any requests to defer inspections because of coronavirus - MHCLG 
Councils will be able to use their discretion on deadlines for Freedom of Information requests - MHCLG 
The Economy Department are monitoring and reporting regularly on status of inspections and required works 

Strategic 
Leadership 
Team 

3 3 9 Keep risk under 
review 

25/08/2020 Open 

57 Economic/ 
Financial 

there is a risk that there may 
be some spike in insurance 
claims following the initial 
response. 

4 3 12 Administration (written procedures) and record keeping, maintaining and reviewing health and safety risk assessments. 
Risk assessments being followed up by the Head of Health and Safety. 
Issue being reviewed at SLT Assurance  
Horizon scanning watchlist 
Further advice and assurance provided by the Head of the Insurance Service to the Assistant Director of People and Talent and 
Covid-19 Lead Director. 
10 June 2020 further review at Horizon Scanning group. The Insurance Team have been informed of this risk and they are 
reviewing place risk assessments as they are undertaken. 
09 October 2020 Health and Safety Board update on general incidents/accidents, which are reported as being low attributable to 
the restrictions and lockdown in the second quarter of the calendar year. Health and Safety Team reports this is a consistent 
pattern across London. 

Director of 
Audit Risk 
Fraud and 
Insurances 

3 3 9 Keep risk under 
review 

09/10/2020 Open 

58 Customer/ 
Client 

there is a risk that there may 
be some initial increase in 
demand for services following 
any relaxation of the Stay 
Home HM Government policy 

5 3 15 Horizon scanning watchlist 
Discussed at Silver Group meeting 29 April 2020 
Recommended for comment/review at Gold group 
Recovery Group 
14 August 2020 review of the Coroners Court at Recovery Board and backlog of Inquest cases 
16 September 2020 re-opening of Libraries with adaptations to mitigate Covid-19. An update to residents provided on the 
Council's Intranet. 
25 September 2020 Recovery Board review and approval of a return of the schools admissions service to a Covid safe system of 
working. 
15 October 2020 Announcement that Greater London Councils are to move into the recently introduced  HM Government Tiers 
(Covid Alert Levels)  from Tier 1 Medium to Tier 2 High effective on 17 October 2020. Some Recovery Plans for services may 
need to be paused or reversed if infection rates continue in Greater London. 

Gold group 
Covid-19 
Board 

4 3 12 Keep risk under 
review 

15/10/2020 Open 

60 Social there is a risk to those 
individuals who require 
additional support including 
those with mental health or 
drug and alcohol addiction. 

5 4 20 The Council are working with organisations such as St Mungos and Turning Point to ensure that individuals are safely housed, 
have food, medicine and support. 
11 August 2020 discussed Outbreak Case at Test and Trace Project Board and the successful implementation of a multi-
disciplinary team, services, CCG and GP's collaboration. 
29 September 2020 DHSC recruitment drive to help people with serious mental illness. £27m announced for mental health 
charity ThinkAhead to expand their mental health social work graduate programme. The charity Mind will help recruit and train a 
new intake of mental health social workers vital in the response to coronavirus.  

Strategic 
Director of 
Social Care 

3 3 9 Keep risk under 
review 

30/09/2020 Open 

64 Health and 
Safety 

there is a safety concern to 
individuals in the workforce 
who may be at increased risk 
of any exposure to Covid-19 

4 4 16 Head of London Regional Employers Organisation discussing the disproportionate impact of Covid 19 on black, Asian and 
minority ethnic (BAME) staff.  
Discussed at Heads of HR co-ordinating with Public Health colleagues who are investigating this issue with a view to getting a 
co-ordinated advice and appropriate risk assessment for staff. Interim advice note issued includes a risk assessment template. 
'Brought to the attention of the Covid-19 Director and Director of People and Talent 
Risk assessment being undertaken by People and Talent using the template issued through the London Regional Employers 
Organisation. 
Assessment to be completed by 15 May 2020 involving the local Trade Unions for sign off at Silver and then communicated to 
Strategic Leadership Team 21 May 2020 and actioned via the Managers’ Forum. 
10 June 2020 Discussed at Horizon Scanning - People and Talent are reviewing risk assessments undertaken and returned by 
Managers 
03 August 2020 Workplace Outbreak Plan 
06 August 2020 Review of person risk assessments at Health and Safety Board 
13 August 2020 Introduction of the WoW Ways of Working package with enhanced safe return to working practices 
14 August 2020 Introduction of Assurance framework for the safe restoration of services from council properties Cat 1, 2, 3 and 4 
discussed and agreed at Technical Assurance Group 
21 September 2020 Technical Assurance Board - the Corporate Safety Team hold the People and Place risk assessment 
documents completed by Managers and individuals. 
30 September 2020 Ways of Working guidance amendments being undertaken by People and Talent following changes to HM 
Government guidelines. 

Assistant 
Director 
People and 
Talent 

3 3 9 
 

Keep risk under 
review 

15/10/2020 Open 

P
age 65



Appendix 1 

12 
 

COUNCIL RISK REGISTER – POST COVID  

1. ONGOING 
RESPONSE Risk Description Inherent Risk  

  
Residual Risk   

Date 
reviewed 

Risk Status 
Open/Closed 

Ref 
No. Class There is a risk of..' Likelihood Impact Score Existing Controls Risk Owner Likelihood Impact Score 

Planned 
Controls     

65 Social there is a risk of a second 
wave of infections if lockdown 
restrictions are lifted too early 
or without maintaining social 
distancing or adhering to new 
government guidance in the 
workplace. 

5 5 25 Horizon scanning. 
Review of business continuity plans completed. 
Service departments have undertaken a lessons learned exercise and retained knowledge within plans. 
New cleaning regimes, social distancing measures introduced in the workplace. 
Covid risk assessments, workforce and workplace. 
Public preventative social distancing measures maintained in busy areas within the borough. 
Enforcement Officers role in implementation of HSE measures in local businesses. 
Work with Public Health in their planning for a local outbreak 
Outbreak plans and introduction of Technical Assurance Group 
24 September 2020 SLT Assurance - Director of Audit, Fraud, Risk and Insurances to scope a review on Outbreak plans. 
28 September - HM Government introduction of new measures across England. 
07 October 2020 - Resilience Group to review frequency of meetings with a possibility of increasing from the current once a 
week. 

Strategic 
Leadership 
Team 

5 3 15 Keep risk under 
review, residual 
likelihood 
increased as 
local rates and 
outbreaks 
increase. 
09 October 
2020 likelihood 
increased as 
the nation sees 
a surge in 
Covid 
infections. Now 
an issue. 
15 October 
2020 risk 
realised, now 
an issue. 

09/10/2020 Closed 

66 Health and 
Safety 

there is a risk that lockdown 
will be localised to areas within 
or around to the borough 
being quarantined that will 
require focussed support 
(housing estates, care homes, 
schools, offices or shops) 

5 5 25 Horizon scanning. 
Review business continuity plans. 
Undertake a lessons learned exercise and retain knowledge within plans. 
Covid risk assessments, workforce and workplace. 
Public preventative social distancing measures maintained in busy areas within the borough. 
Enforcement Officers role in implementation of HSE measures in local businesses. 
Collaborative working with Public Health. 
05 June 2020 Time to Shop Local and Shop Safe Intranet message and campaign. Hammersmith BID and Fulham BID and 
Shepherds Bush Business Forum are also running initiatives to support the campaign 
15 June 2020 There are reports that the test and trace facility operated by Public Health England is not informing the Council 
appropriately with information to assist with Shielding. The issue has been identified by the Covid-19 Director and information is 
being fed back to Public Health England through the Director of Public Health. 
23 June 2020 Public Health England Local Outbreak Planning/Plans for high risk areas and scenario/exercising of plans 
20 August 2020 Head of Legal Services - development of a process within the Governance framework of the Council to trigger a 
'local lockdown'. 
22 September 2020 HM Government announce new Covid measures for England. 
24 September 2020 All pubs, bars and restaurants restricted to table service only, all hospitality must close at 10pm. 
28 September 2020 HM Government introduce new Covid rules for England as the number of Covid cases continue to climb.; 
rule of six; enhanced scope of use of face coverings in settings; curfew meaning all pubs, bars and restaurants must close by 10 
p.m. every day. 
Further limits on wedding guests, fines for those who fail to self-isolate (starting at £1k up to £10,000 for repeat offences), fines 
for businesses who threaten self-isolating staff with redundancy if they are self-isolating and not coming back to work. Hospitality 
venues also legally required to collect track and trace information from customers. Staff who do not enforce social distancing or 
allow larger groups than six can be subject to fines. Office workers to work from home again if possible. Indoor adult sports 
restricted to groups of less than six; planned return of spectators to sports venues will not go ahead as planned from 01 October 
2020. Penalties for not wearing a mask or gathering in groups of more than six increases to £200 on first offence. Retail staff and 
customers in indoor hospitality venues will also have to wear masks expected when seated to eat or drink. 
15 October 2020 Greater London being managed as a single area, entered into the Covid Alert System initially at Tier 1 Medium 
and  to Tier 2 High on 17 October 2020; likelihood that further responses will have some increase in a co-ordinated response 
across Greater London 

Strategic 
Leadership 
Team 

4 3 12 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Keep risk under 
review 

15/10/2020 Open 

67 Health and 
Safety 

there is a risk that infection 
controls are less effective if 
Pillar 2 fails - swab testing by 
the commercial sector 

5 5 25 Review by the Results Investigation Team of the COVID-19 National testing programme. Director of 
Public 
Health  

5 4 20 Keep risk under 
review 

12/10/2020 Open 

68 Information 
Technology 

there is a risk that a Cyber 
Attack may significantly affect 
the ongoing response. 

5 5 25 Messaging by the Chief Digital Officer; Technical, Security and Management controls; Intelligence; Business Continuity. Gold 
training October 2020 

Chief 
Information 
Officer 
Digital 
Services 

4 5 20 Keep risk under 
review 

15/10/2020 Open 

  

P
age 66



Appendix 1 

13 
 

COUNCIL RISK REGISTER – RESTART 

2. RESTART * background information includes 
reference to the HM Government Recovery 
Strategy May 2020 

Inherent Risk   National 
responsible 
body/Council 
lead 

Residual Risk   

Date 
reviewed 

Risk Status 
Open/Closed 

Ref 
No. Class There is a risk of..' Likelihood Impact Score Existing Controls 

 
Likelihood Impact Score 

Planned 
Controls 

  

1 Economic/ 
Financial 

there is an increased risk of a 
critical business failure to the 
just-about-managing (JAMs) 
who are likely to be most 
exposed to those sectors 
affected by the mandatory 
shutdowns in retail, hospitality 
and leisure. 

5 4 20 Government-funded furloughs will be helpful insofar as these businesses stay afloat, which will be difficult where market demand 
has been lost rather than deferred. 
State backed loans are being offered to the smallest businesses from 04 May 2020 with HM Government paying the initial 12 
months interest. 
The 'Bounce Back' loans scheme offers up to £50,000 to small businesses and sole traders, being made available in 24 hours. 
Additional business support from the Council who have provided support during the Coronavirus pandemic. A new series of 
workshops will run over four weeks to assist businesses affected by the COVID-19 crisis in preparation for when lockdown is 
lifted including workshops on how to create ads, diagnose and fix web issues, social media scheduling and image design, 
Google analytics and Google console training. 
Business can also use the business social media platform to engage and trade with other local companies including Twitter, 
Facebook, LinkedIn and Instagram. 
24 September 2020 HM Government announce a short term six month Job Support Scheme, the new emergency fund will 
commence 01 November 2020, the current furlough scheme comes to an end in October 2020. The chancellor also announced 
that businesses borrowing money through the HM Government loan scheme would be given more time to repay the money. VAT 
cut for hospitality and tourism companies will be extended until March 2021. The cut from 20% to 5% VAT came into force on 15 
July 2020.  
15 October 2020 Review of Recovery Programme themes, Gateway review, at Recovery Board. Implications are likely to be 
more severe as a consequence of a second wave and the introduction of new restrictions under the Covid Alert Tiers. 

HM Treasury 4 4 16 Keep risk 
under review 

15/10/2020 Open 

2 Social there is an increased risk to, 
trades and other occupations 
who are least suited to 
working from home. Their 
reliance on public modes of 
transportation once initial 
restrictions are lifted will place 
them at the forefront of the 
second or successive waves 
of infections and deaths. 

5 4 20 Safe distancing posters have been sent to local businesses which are still open to ensure employees and customers remain 
safe. Businesses can access the poster on the Council's business website. 
HM Government's easing of lockdown for more retail businesses in June. 
04 June 2020 HM Government revised guidance of using face coverings when using Public Transport from 15 June 2020 and 
also in NHS settings 
HM Governments further relaxing of lockdown restrictions and end of shielding;  
01 August 2020 Businesses begin to take financial responsibilities for a proportion of furlough costs. HM Government incentive to 
pay £1000 per employee retained following furlough. 
14 August 2020 Lockdown to ease further in England from 15 August 2020, more beauty treatments, small wedding receptions 
and live indoor shows can resume. This to include performance venues with socially distanced audiences, 30 guests at a 
wedding reception, piloting a small number of events at sporting venues for a safe return of spectators; Casinos and bowling 
alleys to reopen. All to operate but can be subject to change if a local lockdown restriction is imposed. 
08 October 2020 Discussion on arts and theatres at Recovery Co-ordinating Group and the work of the Residents Commission. 
15 October 2020 Review of Recovery Programme themes at Recovery Board. Implications are likely to be more severe as a 
consequence of a second wave and the introduction of new restrictions under the Covid Alert Tiers. Dedicated session on 
Economic Recovery being planned. 

Department 
for Transport 

3 4 12 Keep risk 
under review 

15/10/2020 Open 

3 Social there is an increased risk to 
new entrants to the labour 
market who may face 
structural dislocations that can 
disadvantage their lifetime 
earning potential. 

5 4 20 HM Government Incentive payments for hiring a new apprentice. 
15 October 2020 Recovery Board Gateway review - Communications on internal opportunities planned. 

Department 
for Work and 
Pensions 

4 4 16 Keep risk 
under review 

15/10/2020 Open 

4 Social there is an increased risk of 
intergenerational fairness 
becoming even more 
intractable. Interest rates at 
the zero lower bound may help 
those seeking to refinance a 
mortgage but will be 
unwelcome to first-time buyers 
saving for a deposit. In 
contrast to incomes that have 
been depressed or lost 
altogether, wealth may recover 
more quickly benefiting older 
households. 

5 4 20 05 June 2020 - MHCLG extend period banning new evictions to protect renters until 23 August 2020. 
August 2020 - MHCLG announced proposals banning new evictions for 4 weeks and new 6-month notice periods to be in place 
until at least 31 March 2021. 
06 October 2020 LBHF - Building genuinely affordable homes - Springvale Estate. 

Ministry of 
Housing, 
Communities 
& 
Local 
Government 

4 4 16 Keep risk 
under review 

15/10/2020 Open 

6 Human 
resources 

there is an increased risk that 
staff may misinterpret 
announcements by the Prime 
Minister regarding easing of 
lockdown as a green light to 
return to office-based working. 

4 4 16 Chief Executive messaging through h&f engage to all staff undertaken in advance of any expected announcement ahead of the 
Victory in Europe Bank Holiday. 
The majority of staff will continue to work agilely at home with only essential staff working in H&F either in our buildings or directly 
providing services to our residents.  
22 June 2020 Recovery Board and h&f Engage messages provide an updated status on home and office working. 
August 2020 All services planning to return should be departmentally led and proposals outlined at Recovery Board. 
September 2020 Regular Internet and e-mail (h&f engage) Ways of Working; Key Messaging on the Council's intranet and e-mail 
comms. Workforce monitor by People and Talent. 
15 October 2020 Recovery Board. Further Internal communications update planned to follow the announcement that Greater 
London Councils are moving into Tier 2 of the Covid Alert System. 

Chief 
Executive 

3 3 9 Keep risk 
under review 

15/10/2020 Open 

10 Competitive there is a risk that the HM 
Government's easing of the 
lockdown will result in some 
organisations seeking supplies 
of PPE through the Council. 

4 4 16 Ongoing review of supply and demand through the existing procurement processes established for the Covid-19 response 
24 June 2020 - Horizon scanning determined that the Council holds a significant amount of PPE stock. The Assistant Director for 
Facilities Management and Director of Finance to discuss and prepare a short report to SLT on third party PPE requests. 
August 2020 - report of the Head of Procurement and Contracts seeks to establish supplies to replenish stocks. 
October 2020 - Communications to providers regarding sourcing of own stock. 

Director of 
Finance 
Assistant 
Director of 
Facilities 
Management 

3 3 9 Keep risk 
under review 

15/10/2020 Open 

P
age 67



Appendix 1 

14 
 

COUNCIL RISK REGISTER – RESTART 

2. RESTART * background information includes 
reference to the HM Government Recovery 
Strategy May 2020 

Inherent Risk   National 
responsible 
body/Council 
lead 

Residual Risk   

Date 
reviewed 

Risk Status 
Open/Closed 

Ref 
No. Class There is a risk of..' Likelihood Impact Score Existing Controls 

 
Likelihood Impact Score 

Planned 
Controls 

  

11 Customer/ 
Client 

there is a risk that the HM 
Government's easing of the 
working hours in the 
construction industry will have 
an adverse effect on the local 
residents and businesses. 

4 4 16 Briefing note taking proposals to Strategic Leadership Team with input from the Economy and Children’s Services Department. 
21 September 2020 The Noise Nuisance Team - Recovery Board approval to return to some office working delivers and 
addresses concerns about the construction sectors impact on the local area since HM Governments lifting of restrictions to 
working hours. 

Strategic 
Leadership 
Team 

4 3 12 Keep risk 
under review 

25/09/2020 Open 

13 Customer/ 
Client 

there is a risk that the HM 
Government's proposals for 
retail businesses to re-open in 
will result in some businesses 
not being Covid safe on re-
opening. 

4 4 16 27 May 2020 H&F Brilliant 4 Biz communications - Working safely during Coronavirus - Webinar from the Department of 
Business Energy and Industrial Strategy through Eventbrite. 
The Council has published details for businesses of the HM Government and Health and Safety Executive guidance on social 
distancing for business, carrying out risk assessments in accordance with Health and Safety Executive, PPE, customer safety 
including specific guidance for; Construction and other outdoor work; factories, plants and warehouses; labs and research 
facilities; offices and contact centres; other people's homes, restaurants offering takeaways and deliveries; shops and branches; 
vehicles. The Council has also provided a Covid-19 safety poster for local businesses to display in their premises to help ensure 
safety of their employees and customers. 
24 May 2020 HM Government Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government - Reopening High Streets Safely Fund 
will help councils in England introduce a range of safety measures in a move to get people back to work and customers back to 
the shops. It will also support a range of practical safety measures including new signs, street markings and temporary barriers. 
This will help get businesses get ready for when they can begin trading safely, not only in high streets and town and city centres, 
but also in other public spaces. Councils will also be able to use this money to develop local marketing campaigns to explain the 
changes to the public and reassure them that their high streets and other commercial areas are safe. LBHF Awarded £166.9k 
The government has published COVID-secure guidelines for people work in or run shops, branches, and stores. This guidance 
supports shops that are currently open, such as supermarkets and pharmacies, but will also be useful for those in non-essential 
retail to consider now for when they are allowed to open. 
August 2020 Increased resources for Environmental Health Officers to assist in compliance checking. 
30 September 2020 - Resilience meeting - Environmental Health Officer support to businesses and licence holders summarising 
requirements and changes to legislation. Additional support is being given to smaller outlets requiring the QR code to be 
displayed for the NHS App. being provided by the council's own h&f CAN and Shield team. Compliance checking is being 
undertaken. 
08 October 2020 - HM Government announce limited funding for Covid Marshalls also to be spilt with the Police; £30m to be spilt 
to aid Environmental Health officers who do have enforcement powers to ensure businesses follow the restrictions. 
09 October 2020 - Resilience Board -  Environmental Health Team; letters and posters to businesses; support to businesses 
being visited; inspections where non-compliance is being reported; follow-ups undertaken. 
14 October 2020 - Covid-19 Resilience Group updated on Environmental Health Officers activity. This includes reports of support 
given to retailer who have found the regulations difficult to interpret. 

Strategic 
Leadership 
Team 

4 3 12 Keep risk 
under review 

15/10/2020 Open 

15 Health and 
Safety 

there is a risk that the HM 
Government's proposals for 
reduction/increase of 
lockdown restrictions and the 
speed of how regulations 
change, including new Covid 
Alert Tiers, could lead to local 
housing estates, schools, 
businesses or workplaces 
being closed in order to stem 
the virus. Hotspots could be 
placed under local lockdown 
conditions 

4 4 16 Contingency planning 
Review of service continuity plans to prepare for a 2nd wave of infections or local outbreak. 
Public Health Planning 
London Planning 
Outbreak Plans 
16 September 2020 - Cabinet Office virtual review of local arrangements 
07 October 2020 - Resilience Group updated on recent management and control of local outbreaks undertaken by the Incident 
Management Team. 
15 October 2020 - Risk now realised as HM Government has introduced a tiered and regional response. Some issues would be 
managed at a London regional level. 

Strategic 
Leadership 
Team 

4 3 12 Keep risk 
under review 

15/10/2020 Open 

  

P
age 68



Appendix 1 

15 
 

COUNCIL RISK REGISTER - RECOVERY 

3. RECOVERY Senior Responsible Officer, 
COVID Director 

Inherent Risk    Residual Risk     

Ref 
No. 

Class There is a risk of” Likelihood Impact Score Existing Controls Senior 
Responsible 
Officers/Group 

Likelihood Impact Score Planned 
Controls 

Date 
reviewed 

Risk Status 
Open/Closed 

1 Social there is an increased risk in 
meeting mutual assistance 
which is likely to include 
sustained financial support 

5 4 20 Recovery Strategy, Horizon scanning, Humanitarian aid planning, Recovery Group 
Step up Plan for Second Wave; Greater London Regional response. 

Head of 
Regulatory 
Services 

3 4 12 Keep risk 
under review 

15/10/2020 Open 

2 Customer/ 
Client 

there is an increased risk in 
meeting demands for 
services temporarily 
suspended or reduced 
during the COVID response. 

5 4 20 Recovery Strategy, Horizon scanning, Recovery Group 
15 October 2020 - Risks may become issues as HM Government announce Greater London is moving into Tier 2 High Covid 
Alert Level on 17 October 2020 

Strategic 
Leadership 
Team 

4 4 16 Keep risk 
under review 

15/10/2020 Open 

3 Environmental there is a risk that any return 
to office-based working is 
delayed due to implementing 
new distancing measures 
and workforce rota's in 
offices 

4 4 16 Facilities management and People and Talent workplace and workforce planning, risk assessment. Recovery Group. Ways of 
Working. 
15 October 2020 - Recovery may pause or in some cases reverse as HM Government announce Greater London is moving into 
Tier 2 High Covid Alert Level on 17 October 2020 

Facilities 
Management 
Soft and Hard 
Services, 
Assistant 
Director of 
People and 
Talent 

3 3 9 Keep risk 
under review 

15/10/2020 Open 

4 Economic/ 
Financial 

there is a risk to local arts, 
theatres, music and other 
venues in the borough if the 
period of social distancing 
continues for a considerable 
period 

4 4 16 Recovery Strategy, Arts Strategy, Recovery Group 
15 October 2020 Recovery Board Gateway review and Programme Highlight report, further research is being undertaken as part 
of the Economic Recovery; further complicated by the rise in infection rates across Greater London and also the introduction of 
Greater London Councils into Tier 2 Covid Alert High as a region. 

Assistant 
Director for the 
Economy 

3 4 12 Keep risk 
under review 
Re- Assigned 
to the 
Economy 
Department 

15/10/2020 Open 

5 Political/ 
Policy 

There is a risk to 
employment and businesses 
in the hospitality and travel 
sector  

4 4 16 Recovery Strategy, Recovery Group 
15 October 2020 Recovery Board Gateway review and Programme Highlight report, further research is being undertaken as part 
of the Economic Recovery 

Strategic 
Director, The 
Economy 
Department 

4 4 16 Keep risk 
under review 

15/10/2020 Open 

6 Human 
resources 

There is a risk that services 
begin to re-design office or 
workplace layouts without 
reference to corporate plans 
and asset management. 

4 3 12 Recovery Strategy, Recovery Group, Recovery Co-Ordinating Group; Phased approach to re-occupation of Corporate Buildings, 
risk assessment. 
01 June 2020 Recovery and budget planning assessment to be completed by 22 June 2020 
08 June 2020 Re-occupation of corporate properties survey to be completed by 10 June 2020 
17 June 2020 Asset plans discussed at Recovery Board, communications to Officers on the recovery programme now available 
on the main intranet page and include specific instruction that Officer do not return to the Officer without  risk assessment and 
strict permission from their Director. 
August 2020 Introduction of a Technical Assurance Group comprising Digital, FM, Workforce and Health and Safety Officers. 
Services are to use six steps to recovery as available on the Recovery site of the Intranet. 
September 2020 New Ways of Working Guidelines introduced. 

Strategic 
Leadership 
Team 

3 3 9 Keep risk 
under review 

15/10/2020 Open 

7 Human 
resources 

There is a risk that some 
businesses are not able to 
continue due to financial 
pressures that provide a key 
service to the Council. 
Existential risk. 

4 3 12 Recovery Strategy, Recovery Group, Supply Chain resilience and continuity planning 
Creditsafe Covid-19 risk appraisal for the Council's suppliers requested and shared with the Corporate Procurement Team. 
Contracts Assurance Board and Chief Executive to consider proposals 

Strategic 
Leadership 
Team 

3 3 9 Keep risk 
under review 

15/10/2020 Open 

9 Human 
resources 

There is a risk of staff burn 
out due to the focus, effort 
and energy committed by 
staff to the initial Covid-19 
response and then a second 
surge or wave of local 
infections. 

4 4 16 25 June 2020 Raised at pre-mortem with the Leadership forum and discussed at Recovery Board. 
Managers encourage staff and themselves to take annual leave - there has since been an increase in staff booking leave - Silver 
People and Talent report Staff attendance is down by 8% as an indicator that messages are working. 
Managers Assist has been launched on the Intranet that compliments the Wellbeing Wednesdays, and work Employee 
Assistance Programme. 
Regular meetings with TU's and People and Talent 
Regular reminders of the Council's Welfare Offers and Support Mechanisms 
Staff Survey 
10 September 2020 Covid-19 dashboard monitor at Recovery Board. 
15 September 2020 Amended risk description to reflect an emerging spike or second wave. 
24 September 2020 SLT Assurance - Director of Audit, Fraud, Risk and Insurance asked to scope an assurance review on 
personnel resilience. 
15 October 2020 Recovery Board Step Up plan. 

Strategic 
Leadership 
Team and 
People and 
Talent 

4 3 12 Keep risk 
under review 

15/10/2020 Open 

10 Human 
resources 

There is a risk that some 
services are affected by 
Agile and/or Remote 
working and that may affect 
the efficient delivery of 
services that we aspire to 
deliver to the public. 

4 4 16 25 June 2020 Raised at pre-mortem with the Leadership forum and discussed at Recovery Board. 
Performance Appraisal Lite issued 
Leadership Forum are sighted on this issue and the People and Talent Team are working with Leaders and Digital Services, FM 
and the Recovery Board in positive collaboration to address areas. Reference to the ongoing work on the Civic Campus 
Programme. 
10 September 2020 priority based return for the workforce, Recovery Board and Departments will lead the response. 
08 October 2020 Health and Safety Board - review of DSE (Display Screen Equipment) Risk Assessment system and proposals 
for their upgrade to a new software system; review of DSE Equipment provided to workers at home. 

Leadership 
Forum and 
People and 
Talent 

4 3 12 Keep risk 
under review 

15/10/2020 Open 

11 Customer/ 
Client 

There is a risk that the 
demand for pace impacts on 
areas which require more 
time and learning – such as 
innovation, co-production 
and climate change 

4 4 16 25 June 2020 Raised at pre-mortem with the Leadership forum and discussed at Recovery Board 
08 October 2020 Reviewed progress of the Recovery at a Gateway review at Recovery Board. 

Director of 
Covid-19  

4 3 12 Keep risk 
under review 

15/10/2020 Open 

P
age 69



Appendix 1 

16 
 

COUNCIL RISK REGISTER - RECOVERY 

3. RECOVERY Senior Responsible Officer, 
COVID Director 

Inherent Risk    Residual Risk     

Ref 
No. 

Class There is a risk of” Likelihood Impact Score Existing Controls Senior 
Responsible 
Officers/Group 

Likelihood Impact Score Planned 
Controls 

Date 
reviewed 

Risk Status 
Open/Closed 

12 Human 
resources 

Workforce gaps from loss of 
staff and agency reduction 

4 4 16 25 June 2020 Raised at pre-mortem with the Leadership forum and discussed at Recovery Board 
Recovery Planning and MTFS - Innovation and change, taking benefits from Digital Services as a form of Outreach to the 
Community examples include the use of AI to contact vulnerable people or use of h&f CAN volunteers 
Financial modelling of the impacts on Council finances and resilience at Finance Board and Strategic Leadership Team 
24 September 2020 SLT Assurance - raised during the review of the performance dashboard and the possible shift from reliance 
on Agency provision to fte's. Risk mitigated through Resource Management Board reviews. 

Strategic 
Leadership 
Team 

4 3 12 Keep risk 
under review 

15/10/2020 Open 

13 Partnership Deterioration in partner 
relationships leads to loss of 
confidence in Council and 
partners overwhelmed/ 
fatigued/ unclear of their role 

4 4 16 25 June 2020 Raised at pre-mortem with the Leadership forum and discussed at Recovery Board 
Partners may be faced with managing new challenges and objectives that are a consequence of Covid-19 
The Council has extensively reached out to partners to keep them informed and supported during Covid-19 additional financial 
support has been made through local organisations funding, HM Government Grants or schemes 

Strategic 
Leadership 
Team 

4 3 12 Keep risk 
under review 

15/10/2020 Open 

14 Customer/ 
Client 

Failure to consistently 
communicate and engage 
with residents on recovery 
plans 

4 4 16 25 June 2020 Raised at pre-mortem with the Leadership forum and discussed at Recovery Board 
Communications and consultations strategy reviewed and discussed at Recovery Board 
16 September 2020 Libraries re-opening messaging on Social Media, clarity provided on changes, maintaining on-line library 
resources; limiting capacity to enable social distancing; newspapers and magazines can be accessed through on-line resources. 
15 October 2020 Recovery Co-Ordination Group review of Communications approach as part of the Gateway Review 

Head of 
Communications 

3 3 9 Keep risk 
under review 

20/10/2020 Open 

  
  
Opportunity  

                  

1 Human 
resources 

there is an opportunity to 
retain some of the working 
from home arrangements 
proven during the COVID 
response. 

5 4 20 Recovery Strategy, Workforce plan, space planning 
01 June 2020 Recovery and budget planning assessment to be completed by 22 June 2020 
08 June 2020 Re-occupation of corporate properties survey to be completed by 10 June 2020 
13 August 2020 Ways of Working guidelines introduced 
26 August 2020 Recovery Programme review; New Normal – continue to support 70% staff working from home 
Ways of Working – WOW staff guide and survey launched.  Wellbeing Wednesdays.  
Recruiting and developing great people – H&F Earn Whilst You Learn Academy approved by SLT and the Leader and Cllr 
Connell.  Joint working with economic development.  Strategic lead interviews conducted.  
Workforce efficiencies – BI/Key Lines of Enquiry established to fast-track further agency reductions 
Equality, Diversity and Inclusion - Advertised 15 Get ahead opportunities for BAME staff working groups Leads and champions.  
Commitment to Race at Work Charter. 
18 September 2020 4 day working week prototype launch. 
20 October 2020 review of impacts discussed at Recovery Co-Ordination Group, Gateway review 

Assistant 
Director for 
People and 
Talent 

5 4 20 Keep 
opportunity 
under review 

20/10/2020 Open 

2 Environmental there is an opportunity to 
retain some of the 
environmental benefits from 
reduced commuting and 
working from home 
arrangements proven during 
the COVID response. 

5 4 20 Recovery Strategy 
Climate emergency and recovery presentation at Recovery Board 
Ref to Opportunity 1 and gains from Ways of Working 
Gateway review 

Chief Officer, 
Public Realm 

5 4 20 Keep 
opportunity 
under review 

20/10/2020 Open 

3 Environmental there is an opportunity to 
retain some of the physical 
use of property benefits from 
reduced commuting and 
working from home 
arrangements proven during 
the COVID response. 

5 4 20 Recovery Strategy, Gateway review Facilities 
Management 

5 4 20 Keep 
opportunity 
under review 

20/10/2020 Open 

4 Technological there is an opportunity to 
retain some of the services 
moved to a digital form of 
delivery proven during the 
COVID response. 

5 4 20 Recovery Strategy; 13 August 2020 discussed at Recovery Board - Digital Services to be a mandatory theme amongst recovery 
proposals, Gateway review 

Strategic 
Leadership 
Team, Chief 
Information 
Officer Digital 
Services 

5 4 20 Keep 
opportunity 
under review 

20/10/2020 Open 

5 Human 
resources 

there is an opportunity to 
return some services which 
were geographically 
dispersed to the local area 
boosting local employment 
opportunities and resources 

5 4 20 Recovery Strategy, Gateway review Strategic 
Leadership 
Team 

5 4 20 Keep 
opportunity 
under review 

20/10/2020 Open 

6 Customer/ 
Client 

there is an opportunity to 
review areas of family 
service provision following 
the initial Covid-19 outbreak 
and retain or further develop 
on-line digital services. 

5 4 20 Recovery Strategy; 13 August 2020 Family Services re-opening of the Askham Centre considered at Recovery Board, Gateway 
review 

Strategic 
Leadership 
Team 

5 4 20 Keep 
opportunity 
under review 

20/10/2020 Open 

7 Customer/ 
Client 

there is an opportunity to 
review areas of the Civic 
Campus Programme for 
opportunities and benefits 
delivered and how they can 
contribute to the post Covid-

5 4 20 Recovery Strategy, Gateway review Strategic 
Leadership 
Team 

5 4 20 Keep 
opportunity 
under review - 
underway, 
report to SLT 
DB and NB 

20/10/2020 Open 

P
age 70



Appendix 1 

17 
 

COUNCIL RISK REGISTER - RECOVERY 

3. RECOVERY Senior Responsible Officer, 
COVID Director 

Inherent Risk    Residual Risk     

Ref 
No. 

Class There is a risk of” Likelihood Impact Score Existing Controls Senior 
Responsible 
Officers/Group 

Likelihood Impact Score Planned 
Controls 

Date 
reviewed 

Risk Status 
Open/Closed 

19 delivery of Council 
Services 

The Economy 
Department 
working with 
DP in Finance 
(Commercial)  

8 Customer/ 
Client 

there is an opportunity to 
utilise the h&f CAN 
volunteers in other areas 
and to review the current 
operating hours for the call 
centre 

5 4 20 Mindful of a potential 2nd wave, we have maintained contact with the volunteers, planned and rehearsed any potential outbreak 
planning. This has included the stepping back up of shielding support and provision of food and support via volunteers. This has 
recently been commented on by the cabinet office at a site visit 16th September as “Impressive” planning. 
September 2020 h&f CAN/Shield staff supporting Local Contact Tracing calls. 

Assistant 
Director for 
Housing 
Operations 

5 4 20 Keep 
opportunity 
under review 

20/10/2020 Open 

9 Technological there is an opportunity to 
utilise world-leading artificial 
intelligence technology like 
the Yokeru system to 
identify those residents in 
greatest need and get help 
to them without delay 
including food parcels. 

5 4 20 Recovery Strategy - The Council quickly put in place h&f Shield with Volunteers from h&f CAN and staff from the business 
intelligence unit. Yokeru were brought in to make automated calls to 9000 residents to see who needed help urgently. Volunteers 
and staff then followed up in person. 

Chief 
Information 
Officer Digital 
Services 

5 4 20 Keep 
opportunity 
under review 

20/10/2020 Open 

COUNCIL RISK REGISTER – TEST AND TRACE Closed now 
business as 

usual 

         

 
CORPORATE CONTINUITY          

4. CORPORATE CONTINUITY Lead Officer 
Business Continuity Manager 

Inherent Risk 
 

   Residual Risk     

Ref 
No. 

Class There is a risk of..” Likelihood Impact Score Existing Controls Senior Responsible 
Officers/Group 

Likelihood Impact Score Planned 
Controls 

Date 
reviewed 

Risk Status 
Open/Closed 

1 Technological risks associated with the 
failure of the IT Network 
infrastructure 

5 5 25 Insurances-Business Continuity plan(s)-Disaster recovery plan-Service Resilience Group 
London Resilience Planning / London Risk Advisory Group / National Security Risk Assessment / London Risk Register / 
London Risk Planning Assumptions. 

Chief Information 
Officer Digital Services 

4 4 16 Keep risk 
under review 
Updated to 
reflect 
relationship to 
London 
Planning  
Updated to 
reflect Works 
at 
Hammersmith 
Town Hall; 
Disaster 
recovery plan 
to be 
reviewed. 

21/10/2020 Open 

2 Technological risks associated with the 
failure of the IT Network 
Cyber-attack (e.g. total or 
partial loss of data) 

5 5 25 User training and guidance-Firewalls-Backups-'Insurances-Business Continuity plan(s)-Disaster recovery plan-Service 
Resilience Group 

Chief Information 
Officer Digital Services 

4 4 16 Keep risk 
under review 
Disaster 
recovery plan 
to be 
reviewed. 

21/10/2020 Open 

3 Technological risks associated with loss of 
a major IT system 

5 5 25 Business Continuity plan(s)-Contractual obligations of the provider-periodic credit reviews-contract management-
emergency procurement 

Information Asset 
Owner 

4 4 12 Keep risk 
under review 
Updated to 
reflect Works 
at 
Hammersmith 
Town Hall 
Disaster 
recovery plan 
to be 
reviewed. 

21/10/2020 Open 

4 Economic/ 
Financial 

risks associated with the exit 
of the EU with a No-Trade 
Deal 

4 5 20 Business Continuity plan(s) 
London Chief Executives have asked Chief Executive of LB’s Richmond and Wandsworth, to lead this work. 

Director of Finance 4 4 16 Keep risk 
under review 
Amended to 
reference No 
Trade Deal 

21/10/2020 Open 

5 Human 
resources 

risks associated with 
Workforce - Covid and Brexit 
Trade 'no deal'  

5 5 25 Workforce plan-Vendor Neutral Agency Provider-'Business Continuity plan(s)-Outbreak Plan Assistant Director of 
People and Talent 
Chief Officer Safer 
Neighbourhoods 

3 4 12 Keep risk 
under review 

14/08/2020 Open 

P
age 71



Appendix 1 

18 
 

6 Environmental risks associated with 
Terrorism or Explosion in the 
local area 

5 5 25 Licensing and inspections-Security-Emergency Plan-Business Continuity plan(s)-Insurance 
London Resilience Planning / London Risk Advisory Group / National Security Risk Assessment / London Risk Register / 
London Risk Planning Assumptions. 

Chief Officer Safer 
Neighbourhoods 

3 4 12 Keep risk 
under review 
Updated to 
reflect 
relationship to 
London 
Planning  

16/10/2020 Open 

7 Customer/ 
Client 

risks associated with loss of 
a significant supplier (non-
IT) 

5 5 25 Contract Management-Credit Checking- Supply Chain Assessment--Business Continuity plan(s)-emergency procurement 
London Resilience Planning / London Risk Advisory Group / National Security Risk Assessment / London Risk Register / 
London Risk Planning Assumptions. 

Head of Procurement 
and Contracts 

3 4 12 Keep risk 
under review 
Updated to 
reflect 
relationship to 
London 
Planning  

16/10/2020 Open 

8 Energy or Fuel risks associated with loss of 
Utilities (Power, Gas, Water) 

5 5 25 Contract Management- Supply Chain Assessment--Business Continuity plan(s)-emergency procurement-Emergency 
Plan 
London Resilience Planning / London Risk Advisory Group / National Security Risk Assessment / London Risk Register / 
London Risk Planning Assumptions. 

Assistant Director of 
Operations the 
Economy Department 

3 4 12 Keep risk 
under review 
Updated to 
reflect 
relationship to 
London 
Planning  

16/10/2020 Open 

9 Environmental risks associated with total 
loss of use of a building, 
office or workplace. (Fire, 
flood, collapse, cordon, 
social disorder or protest) 

5 5 25 Asset management-Business Continuity Plan(s), Emergency Plan 
London Resilience Planning / London Risk Advisory Group / National Security Risk Assessment / London Risk Register / 
London Risk Planning Assumptions. 

Assistant Director of 
Operations the 
Economy Department 

3 4 12 Keep risk 
under review 
Updated to 
reflect 
relationship to 
London 
Planning  

16/10/2020 Open 

10 Legislative/ 
Regulatory 

risks associated with 
ensuring completion of a 
successful election. 

5 5 25 Elections Team-Elections Project Team-Business Continuity Planning. 
21 September 2020 - Review of Canvassing. Technical Assurance Group and Head of Service. Conclusion that 
canvassing in the current scenario, increasing rates of infection, second wave, was not approved. Should the position 
change then the situation could be reviewed. 25 September 2020 Recovery Board supported the decision not to support 
door to door canvassing at this time. 

Head of Electoral 
Services 

2 4 8 Keep risk 
under review 

22/09/2020 Open 

11 Partnership risks associated with failure 
of a strategic partnership 
(IBC, Family Support, 
Pensions Admin.) 

5 5 25 Partnership governance and appointments-Performance reviews-Business Continuity Plan(s) Strategic Leadership 
Team 

3 4 12 Keep risk 
under review 

14/08/2020 Open 

12 Partnership risks associated with failure 
of a banking or payment 
system 

5 5 25 Performance reviews-Business Continuity Plan(s)-Use of Procurement Cards-repeat last payments run 
London Resilience Planning / London Risk Advisory Group / National Security Risk Assessment / London Risk Register / 
London Risk Planning Assumptions. 

Director of Finance 2 4 8 Keep risk 
under review 
Updated to 
reflect 
relationship to 
London 
Planning  

16/10/2020 Open 

13 Partnership risks associated with the 
running of the mortuary 
service on behalf of other 
London Boroughs 

5 5 25 Performance reviews-Business Continuity Plan(s)-Designated Disaster Mortuary Plan 
15 September 2020 Outbreak plan walkthrough with Head of Service 

Director of Resources 2 4 8 Keep risk 
under review 

22/09/2020 Open 

  Community risks              

1 Economic/ 
Financial 

risks associated with Brexit 
(No Free Trade agreement) 
and the impact on supplies, 
food, power and workforce. 

5 5 25 Brexit Planning-Brexit Briefings-Communications-Status application support-Business Continuity Plans 
London Resilience Planning / London Risk Advisory Group / National Security Risk Assessment / London Risk Register / 
London Risk Planning Assumptions. 
London Chief Executives have asked Chief Executive of LB’s Richmond and Wandsworth, to lead this work. 

Director of Finance 4 4 16 Keep risk 
under review 
Amended to 
better 
reference a no 
deal on Trade 
with the EU. 

16/10/2020 Open 

2 Social risks associated with Covid 
19 and the impact on 
supplies, food, power, 
employment and Public 
Health 

5 5 25 Covid Response and Recovery Planning - Outbreak Plans - Business Continuity Plans - Standing Operating Procedures 
London Resilience Planning / London Risk Advisory Group / National Security Risk Assessment / London Risk Register / 
London Risk Planning Assumptions. 

Strategic Leadership 
Team 

4 4 16 Keep risk 
under review 

16/10/2020 Open 

3 Customer/ 
Client 

risks associated with 
Terrorism or Hostile Vehicle 
attack in the local area 

4 5 20 CCTV-Street Design and Planning-Situational awareness and liaison with the Police  
London Resilience Planning / London Risk Advisory Group / National Security Risk Assessment / London Risk Register / 
London Risk Planning Assumptions. 

Community Safety 
Manager 

4 4 16 Keep risk 
under review 
Updated to 
reflect 
relationship to 
London 
Planning  

16/10/2020 Open 

4 Customer/ 
Client 

risks associated with Fire 4 5 20 CCTV-Fire Safety Measures-Property Design and Planning-LFB-Capital Works e.g. Installation of fire safety doors; 
Sprinkler Systems at Edward Woods Estate/Drake/Shackleton Courts 
London Resilience Planning / London Risk Advisory Group / National Security Risk Assessment / London Risk Register / 
London Risk Planning Assumptions. 

Community Safety 
Manager 

2 4 8 Keep risk 
under review 
Updated to 
reflect 
relationship to 
London 
Planning  

16/10/2020 Open 

P
age 72



Appendix 1 

19 
 

5 Customer/ 
Client 

risks associated with 
Climate Change (heat, flood, 
cold, wind) 

4 5 20 Declaration of a Climate Change Emergency-Residents Commission-Air Quality Monitoring-Traffic controls and 
Initiatives-SuDs 
London Resilience Planning / London Risk Advisory Group / National Security Risk Assessment / London Risk Register / 
London Risk Planning Assumptions. 
Support of London Recycles Repair Week offer on Laptop Fault and Fix Repair Service at 20% discount; Broken 
Furniture 

Climate Strategy Lead 3 4 12 
 

Keep risk 
under review 
Updated to 
reflect 
relationship to 
London 
Planning  

16/10/2020 Open 

 
 
 

Corporate Health and Safety           

5. CORPORATE CONTINUITY Lead Officer 
Head of Corporate Safety 

Inherent Risk 
 

   Residual Risk     

Ref 
No. 

Class There is a risk of..” Likelihood Impact Score Existing Controls Senior 
Responsible 
Officers/Group 

Likelihood Impact Score Planned 
Controls 

Date 
reviewed 

Risk Status 
Open/Closed 

1 Health and 
Safety 

risks associated with the 
management of corporate 
health and safety 

5 5 25 Health and Safety Policy; Corporate Safety Team; Health and Safety Board; Operational Risk Register; Health and 
Safety Team Audit work; Individual Policies; Training; Reporting; Annual report to Audit and Pensions Committee; 

Head of Corporate 
Safety 

3 4 12 Keep risk 
under review 

16/10/2020 Open 

 
 

16-25   Red 
High risk, immediate management 
action is required.     

11-15   Amber 
Medium risk, review controls for 
appropriateness and effectiveness     

1-10   Green 
Low risk, monitor and if escalates 
quickly check controls     

    Blue Opportunity risk           

Help 

Risk Description Describe your risk in a language that articulates clearly what could go wrong or what 
opportunity could be achieved.     

Inherent Risk First measure the risk as it stands, likelihood and impact, with no controls. This is known as 
the inherent risk.     

Residual Risk Then measure the risk once you have identified the controls currently in place. This is 
known as the residual risk.     

Existing 
Controls 

Not all risks can be managed, but those that can are managed using a variety of 
controls.        
The art of risk management is to apply controls that are effective and efficient in reducing 
the exposure.      

Risk Owner 
This should be the person best positioned to manage the identified risk           

Likelihood and 
Impact 

Based on a 1 to 5 scale with 1 Very Low and 5 Very High, the Score then is automatically calculated 

 Planned 
Controls 

Where the Residual Risk remains higher than desired you must consider and apply further 
controls to improve the risk     

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 73



Appendix 2 

20 
 

National policy developments timeline. 
Since the last update to Executive Board, the government has taken several measures to respond to changing rates of infection across the country. 
This timeline does not detail every national development but covers some of the most significant. Full details of guidance and communications issued 
by the government can be found on the gov.uk website. 
 
 

Date  Area 

21 September   New £500 Isolation Support Payment announced for people on low incomes, meeting certain criteria, who can’t work because they’ve 
tested positive or are asked to self-isolate by NHS Test and Trace. 

 The UK Chief Medical Officers and Joint Biosecurity Centre recommended that the UK Covid-19 alert level moves from level 3 (COVID-

19 epidemic is in general circulation) to level 4 (COVID-19 epidemic is in general circulation; transmission is high or rising exponentially).  
22 September  An exemption to restrictions on household mixing introduced for areas of intervention, to allow for informal care of vulnerable adults and 

children under 14 as part of a consistent ‘care bubble’. 

 Prime Minister announced new national measures in response to increasing rates of Covid-19. People encouraged to work from home if 
possible. Indoor adult sport is no longer exempt from Rule of Six. The planned reopening of conferences, exhibition halls and large 
sporting events from 1 October is suspended. 

23 September  The wearing of face coverings becomes mandatory for taxi and private hire customers; within hospitality venues except when seated; and 
for retail staff, with fixed penalties for breaches. 

24 September  NHS Covid-19 app launched across England and Wales. 

 Hospitality venues legally required to display the NHS QR code, ensure that no individual group larger than 6 enters the premises, and 
close at 10pm, and licensed premises can only offer table service, plus takeaway, which can continue beyond 10pm. Fines of £1000 for 
businesses that fail in these duties.  

 The Chancellor unveils the Winter Economy Plan, including a Job Support Scheme to replace the furlough scheme from 1 November, and 
an extension to the Self-Employed Income Support Scheme. The new Jobs Support Scheme will start on the 1st November, replacing the 
Furlough Scheme, to cover nearly a quarter of workers’ pay in ‘viable’ jobs for the next six months. A new ‘Pay as you Grow’ loan scheme 
will allow lenders to extend the length of Bounce Back Loans and Coronavirus Business Interruption Scheme Loans from 6 years to 10. 
These two schemes, and the Future Fund, have been extended until the end of November. The Self Employment Grant Support Scheme 
will also be extended with an initial taxable grant provided to those currently eligible for the Self-Employment Income Support Scheme 
and who are continuing to actively trade but face reduced demand. 

28 September  A new legal duty to self-isolate came into force for people who test positive for Covid19 or come into contact with someone who has 
tested positive. Those who break the rules could be fined £1000, increasing to £10,000 for repeat offences. 

 Maximum number of people who can attend a wedding ceremony or reception reduced from 30 to 15. 

12 October  Three-tiered system for England announced. Simplified rules of Medium, High and Very High for all places across England.  

13 October  Government announced £10 million Cold Weather Payment for councils to help to keep rough sleepers safe this winter. Additional £2 
million will go to faith and community groups to help them support rough sleepers into accommodation. 

22 October   Changes to the Job Support Scheme announced. The government will now fund 62% of the wages for hours not worked. This more than 
doubles the maximum payment to £1,541.75 a month. In the most generous case, the taxpayer will now go from funding 22% of wages to 
just under half. The scheme will, as before, be open to all small businesses and larger businesses that can show an impact on revenues 

 

Page 74



London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

 
Report to:  Audit and Pensions Committee 
 
Date:  01/12/2020 
 
Subject:  Internal Audit Progress Report 2020/21 
 
Report of:  David Hughes, Director for Audit, Fraud, Risk and Insurance 
 
Responsible Director: Director for Audit, Fraud, Risk and Insurance 
 

Summary 

The Covid-19 pandemic has delayed the start of the 2020/21 Internal Audit work, which is 
in line with audit teams across all London Boroughs.  Good progress is now being made in 
undertaking the audits contained in the revised Audit Plan and 2 audits have already been 
finalised since the last report to the Committee.  The details of the completed audits are 
contained in this report, however no overall opinion is given at this time on the adequacy 
and effectiveness of the Council’s governance, risk management and controls. 

Recommendation 

For the Committee to note and comment on the report. 

 

Wards Affected: None 
 

H&F Values 

Our Values Summary of how this report aligns to the H&F 
Priorities  

Being ruthlessly 
financially efficient 

The work undertaken by Internal Audit helps to ensure 
that management have robust controls and practices in 
place to safeguard the Council’s assets, controlling 
expenditure and maximising potential income to protect 
and invest in essential frontline services which are in 
place to meet the Council’s priorities 

Contact Officer: 

Name:  David Hughes 
Position: Shared Services Director for Audit, Fraud, Risk and Insurance 
Telephone: 020 7361 2389 
Email:  David.HughesAudit@lbhf.gov.uk 
 

Background Papers Used in Preparing This Report 
None. 
 

  

Page 75

Agenda Item 9



DETAILED ANALYSIS 

 

Internal Audit Work to October 2020 

1. The Council’s internal audit service is provided by the Shared Services Internal Audit 
Team which is managed by the RBKC based Shared Services Director for Audit, Fraud, 
Risk and Insurance.  Audits are undertaken by the in-house audit team or through the 
external contractors to the service.  The Audit and Pensions Committee are provided with 
updates at each meeting on progress against the Annual Audit Plan and on any limited or 
no assurance audits issued in the period. 

2. The revised Audit Plan for 2020/21 was reviewed by the Audit and Pensions Committee in 
September 2020.  Where significant changes in the coverage of the plan occur, these will 
be reported to the Committee and a full record of changes during the year is also reported 
within the Head of Internal Audit’s Annual report.   

3. Since the last report to Members, two audits have been completed in respect of the 
systems and controls in place for managing and monitoring health and safety in housing 
properties in the areas of water hygiene (Substantial Assurance) and asbestos 
(Satisfactory Assurance).  The progress made in both these areas demonstrates a 
continuing trend in improvement in the Council’s control arrangements and this is the first 
time a Substantial Assurance report has been issued over the past three years.  These 
audits are summarised in Appendix 1. 

 

Internal Audit Opinion 

4. As the provider of the internal audit service to the London Borough of Hammersmith & 
Fulham, the Shared Services Director for Audit, Fraud, Risk and Insurance is required to 
provide the Section 151 Officer and the Audit and Transparency Committee with an 
opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s governance, risk management 
and control arrangements. 

5. As reported to the last meeting of the Committee, the Covid-19 pandemic has delayed the 
start of our work in 2020/21 and no overall assurance opinion can be given at this stage, 
although the S151 Officer and the Committee can be assured that sufficient internal audit 
work is planned and in progress to ensure an appropriate assurance opinion can be 
provided by the end of the financial year.  In addition, the Director of Audit, Fraud, Risk 
and Insurance and his team are involved in supporting a number of elements of the 
Council’s ongoing Covid response which will help to obtain assurances to feed into the 
annual opinion.  Appendix 2 shows the status of the audits contained in the Audit Plan. 

 

Follow Ups 

6. In the period up to the end of October 2020, 18 recommendations, 7 high, 9 medium and 2 
low priority recommendations, which were due to have been implemented have been 
followed up by Internal Audit.   

7. Follow up confirmed that all 18 recommendations had been fully implemented.   

 
Consultation 

8. The report has been subject to consultation with the Strategic Leadership Team.   

Page 76



 

Legal Implications 

9. Regulation 3 of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 sets out the Council’s 
responsibility for ensuring that it has a sound system of internal control which:  

a. facilitates the effective exercise of its functions and the achievement of its aims 
and objectives;  

b. ensures that the financial and operational management of the authority is effective; 
and,  

c. includes effective arrangements for the management of risk.  

10. Regulation 5 requires the Council to ensure that it undertakes an effective internal audit to 
evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, control and governance processes, 
taking into account public sector internal auditing standards or guidance.  

11. There are no particular legal implications arising from this report. 

12. Implications verified by Janette Mullins Chief Solicitor (litigation), tel: 020 8753 2744   

 
Financial Implications 

13. The Internal Audit Plan is delivered within the revenue budget for the service.  Actions 
required as a result of audit work, and any associated costs, are the responsibility of the 
service managers and directors responsible for the areas which are reviewed. 

14. The proposals contained in this paper have no additional resource implications for the 
audit service. 

15. Implications completed by Andre Mark, Finance Business Partner, 020 8753 6729 and 
verified by Emily Hill, Director of Finance, 0208 753 3145. 

 
Risk Management 

16. The Internal Audit Plan is developed and delivered to cover the key risks faced by the 
Council, to provide assurance on the key controls in operation and the effective 
management of key risks.  

17. Implications verified by Michael Sloniowski, Risk Manager, telephone 020 8753 2587  

 
List of Appendices: 
 
Appendix 1  Summary of Audit Reports issued to end October 2020 
Appendix 2   Audit Plan 2020-21 - Status Report to end October 2020 
 
 

Page 77



APPENDIX 1 
Summary of Audit Report issued to end October 2020 

 
Ref Audit & Scope Details Assurance 

Rating 

1 Housing Health & 
Safety – Water 
Hygiene 

The objective of this 
review was to ensure 
that the Council 
minimises the risks 
associated with water 
hygiene and legionella 
and that all the Council’s 
duties are carried out 
with regards to water 
hygiene. 

Infrequently used man-made hot and cold-water systems and standing water are likely to provide an 
environment where Legionella can grow.   

There is no legislation specific to Legionella, but the following do place specific duties on landlords 
with regards to the control of Legionella:  

 The Health and Safety at Work Act 1974 – The Council has a duty under the Health and Safety at 
Work Act 1974 to ensure the health and safety of tenants by keeping properties safe and free 
from health hazards, including legionella.  

 The Control of Substances Hazardous to Health Regulations 2002 (COSHH) - Legionella 
pneumophila is classed as a biological agent by the Health and Safety Executive (HSE) and is 
listed as a Class 2 hazard under the COSSH Regulations.  

 HSE Approved Code of Practice (ACOP) ‘The Control of Legionella bacteria in water systems’ – 
The HSE ACOP is not an Act or Regulation but does have legal status.  

One medium priority recommendation was raised to improve control: 

 Water hygiene management of housing communal water systems is undertaken by HSL 
Compliance Ltd (HSL).  Compliance with statutory obligations for the control of Legionella bacteria 
in water systems is undertaken by Phoenix Compliancy Management Ltd (PCM).  It was noted 
that compliance reports had not been fully completed to indicate whether rectification measures 
identified by PCM had been completed by HSL or whether the property was compliant following 
the completion of rectification measures.  It was agreed that compliance actions identified by PCM 
will now be logged on the asset management system (Techforge) with actions reported on and 
monitored via the Power BI dashboard and spot checks undertaken by the Senior Commercial 
Inspector. 

As the audit testing covered the period up to March 2020 (pre-lockdown). Further discussions were 
held with management to ascertain the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on the service and it was 
confirmed that:  

 Throughout the period of lockdown, the service has continued with the sampling and testing of hot 
and cold water;  

 The only impact on the service was their ability to access sheltered properties to undertake the 
inspection and cleaning of shower heads. In order to address this, the Head of Mechanical and 
Electrical undertook a risk assessment in consultation with sheltered housing officers with regards 
to vulnerabilities, self-isolation and the potential risks from not undertaking shower head 
inspections/cleaning. As a result of this exercise the service re-commenced the monitoring of 
shower heads within their sheltered housing schemes.  

Substantial 

P
age 78



APPENDIX 1 
Summary of Audit Report issued to end October 2020 

Ref Audit & Scope Details Assurance 
Rating 

2 Housing Health & 
Safety – Asbestos 
Management 

The objective of this 
review was to ensure 
that the Council 
minimises the risks 
associated with 
asbestos within housing 
properties and that all 
the Council’s duties are 
effectively carried out. 

The Council has responsibilities under the Health and Safety at Work Etc. Act 1974, and the Control 
of Asbestos Regulations (CAR) 2012 to identify and to safely manage Asbestos Containing Materials 
(ACMs) on its premises. 

Asbestos surveys on the Council’s housing stock are currently undertaken by Life Environmental Ltd 
and Environmental Essentials Ltd. Asbestos removal is undertaken by Cablesheer Asbestos Ltd and 
Woods Building Services Ltd. These contracts ran up to 31 July 2020 and new contracts have been 
signed since the audit fieldwork took place. 

Two medium priority recommendations were made to improve controls in the following areas: 

 Whilst it is the responsibility of the contractor to ensure that their staff are provided with all 
relevant training including asbestos training,   it was however noted that the Council does not 
regularly request for the contractor to provide evidence of the updated training records of their 
staff.  

 The Control of Asbestos Regulations 2012 relates to non-domestic properties, rather than 
domestic properties, as such surveys are usually only undertaken in respect of domestic 
properties only when a repair needs to be carried out. Therefore, if there have been no repairs, 
then no surveys are undertaken.  However, it is industry best practice for Social Housing, that all 
communal areas should have an asbestos survey performed and that ACM is reported on and 
managed as a result of that.  It has been recommended that surveys should be undertaken on a 
proportion of their domestic stock going forward. 

It should be noted that our sample testing was carried out during lockdown.  Further discussions were 
held with management to ascertain the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on the service. The 
Asbestos Manager has confirmed the following: 

 All LBHF contractors were required to submit Covid-19 Risk Assessments and modify approach 
to residential homes to ensure that the Risk Assessments supplied match the Council and Public 
Health England expectations for social distancing and Respiratory Protective 
Equipment/Personal Protective Equipment.   

 Communal surveys were undertaken by a back-up supplier due to resourcing issues with Life 
Environmental Ltd and Environmental Essentials Ltd as a result of officers placed on furlough. 
There was no reduction in the ability to complete surveys raised by the Council. 

 The licensed asbestos removal contractors continued to work for the Council throughout Covid-
19 pandemic.   

 Respiratory Protective Equipment and Personal Protective Equipment used by the asbestos 
contractors is the same standard as that required in NHS Covid-19 wards. This was worn prior 
to entry into residents’ homes and disposed of as asbestos waste after exiting the premises. 

 

P
age 79



APPENDIX 1 
Summary of Audit Report issued to end October 2020 

 

P
age 80



APPENDIX 2 
Audit Plan 2020-21 – Status Report to end October 2020 

Completed Audits: 
 

Plan Area Auditable Area Issued Assurance 
level given 

No of High 
Priority Recs 

No of Med. 
Priority 

Recs 

No of Low 
Priority 

Recs 

Reported 
to 

Committee 

Cross cutting PPE – Review of Process 
(Covid Support) 

Jun-2020 Advisory n/a n/a n/a Dec 2020 

Finance Pension Admin – Payments May-2020 Advisory 0 5 0 Dec 2020 

Resources - 
People & 
Talent 

Pension Admin – Support 
and Process (Advisory) 

n/a On-going n/a n/a n/a Dec 2020 

Economy Housing H&S – Water 
Hygiene & Legionella 

Oct-2020 Substantial 0 1 0 Dec 2020 

Housing H&S – Asbestos 
(draft) 

Oct-2020 Satisfactory 0 2 0 Dec 2020 

Status of Remaining Audits: 
 

Plan Area In Progress Being Scoped Booked for Q4 To Be Confirmed Defer/ Cancelled 

Cross cutting  RFE – Financial /HR 

Compliance 

 GDPR Support 

(Information Assets) 

  Procurement 
(governance) 

 Contract Management 

 Business Continuity 
(new system 
compliance) 

 

Finance  Treasury Management  Housing Rents   Capital Programme 

 Income Compensation 
Scheme 

 

Resources  HR and Payroll 

Compliance Testing 

Digital Services: 

 New Application 

Approval Process 

 Post-Implementation 

  Policy & Coms - 
Governance 

 

P
age 81



APPENDIX 2 
Audit Plan 2020-21 – Status Report to end October 2020 

Plan Area In Progress Being Scoped Booked for Q4 To Be Confirmed Defer/ Cancelled 

(Tech tonic) 

 IT Access & Asset 

Management 

People & Talent: 

 Sickness Absence 

Children’s 
Services 

 

 Supporting People 

Claims (on-going) 

   Movement of 
Sharepoint Data (SEN) 
– Advisory 

 Placements – Advisory 

 Use of Spot Contracts 

 Use of Procurement 
Cards & Cash 

 

Schools  St Mary’s Primary 

 St Stephen’s Primary 

 Woodlands High 

 Queensmill School (f/up 

from previous review) 

 School Bursarial 

Service (VFM) 

 Recharging for SEN 

 Thematic Reviews 

(Health & Safety and IT 

Security/ GDPR) 

 Flora Gardens 

Primary 

 Avonmore Primary (Jan 
2021) 

 (St John’s XXIII) Pope 
John Primary (Mar 
2021) 

 Cambridge Special (Mar 
2021) 

  

Social Care & 
Public Health 

 Mosaic Financial 

Controls 

 Supervision 

(compliance) 

   Risk Workshops 
(advisory) 

 Risk Management 
(assurance) 

 Test & Trace Funding 
(assurance) 

 PFI Programme (VFM) – 
request to review end Q4 
or cfwd to 2021/22 

Economy  Implementation of H&S 

Recommendations – 

 Homelessness  Major Works, Lessee 
and Service Charges 

 Security – Resource 
Management 

 Workzone/ Local 
Business Support 

P
age 82



APPENDIX 2 
Audit Plan 2020-21 – Status Report to end October 2020 

Plan Area In Progress Being Scoped Booked for Q4 To Be Confirmed Defer/ Cancelled 

Advisory 

 Corporate Health & 

Safety 

 Housing H&S – 

Electrical Compliance 

(follow-on from 2019/20 
work) 

 Housing Allocations 
(Mar 2021) 

 Major Works, Lessee & 
Service Charges  

 DLO Communal & 
Programmed Remedial 
Works 

 Long Term Repairs 
Model – Programme 2 
(cfwd from 2019/20) 

 Property Management 
Systems Information 

(request to review in Q4 
& possible cfwd to 
2021/22 – Covid impact) 

 Geometra Data Quality – 
no longer required 
(covered in H&S reviews) 

Environment  FOI/ SARs, Complaints 

& Members Enquiries 

(part 1) 

 CCTV – Contract 

Management 

 Grounds Maintenance – 

Contract Management 

 Council Tax 

 NNDR 

 Housing Benefits 

  Parking – PRP Scheme  Parks Police – Patrols, 
Planning & Monitoring 
(ceasing from Jan 2021).  
Consider new service in 
2021/22 

 

P
age 83


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Treasury Management Strategy Mid-Year Review 2020-21
	5 Annual Health and Safety Report 2019-20
	6 Health and Safety Mid-Year Report 2020-21
	7 Anti-Fraud Mid-Year Report 2020-21
	8 Risk Management Highlight Report
	9 Internal Audit Progress Report 2020-21

